
Safety and Licensing Committee

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers, 6th Floor5:30 PMWednesday, February 23, 2022

1. Call meeting to order

2. Roll call of membership

3. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

22-0205 Approval of minutes from previous meeting.

 

S & L Minutes 1-26-22.pdfAttachments:

4. Public Hearings/Appearances

5. Action Items

22-0046 Resolution #1-R-22 Intoxicated Bartender Ordinance

#1-R-22 Intoxicated Bartenders.pdf

Intoxicated Bartender incidents 2021.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

1/26/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

held

Motion and second to deny were withdrawn.

Motion to hold until February 23rd to allow for additional revisions carried 

5/0.

22-0208 Auto-Aid Addendum with the Neenah/Menasha Fire Rescue

 

Auto-Aid_Neenah_Menasha_Memo.pdf

22-0078 - Addendum to Automatic Aid Agrm.pdf

2011 Auto Aid Agreement MOU.pdf

2010 Shared Response.pdf

Attachments:

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 2/18/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20756
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=50e18125-c722-45c0-a73c-501f1ff01f33.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20597
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=36a7a4e9-b9a2-4e8c-81b0-9d8c1e9c1476.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6f2819ca-80d3-4d0d-ad0e-9db2f8874e28.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20759
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6e146949-a636-4370-b5a9-a4e309dcf503.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cc453aec-e2ea-43af-9802-1b5dfc1788ce.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7a68b0b2-5cb4-4647-a201-1327a1cefe4f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=46f7883d-b57a-4aba-b364-9ee17a90e82c.pdf


February 23, 2022Safety and Licensing Committee Meeting Agenda - Final

22-0209 Urban Search and Rescue Contract

 

Urban_Search_and_Rescue_Memo.pdf

Urban Search and Rescue 2022-2024 Agreement.pdf

2021_Act_104.pdf

Attachments:

22-0047 Reserve "Class B" Liquor and Class "B" Beer License application for 

Jackson Investment Group d/b/a Jimmy's on the Ave, April Anderson, 

Agent, located at 409 W College Ave, contingent upon approval from the 

Community Development, Health and Inspections departments.

Jimmys on the Ave.pdfAttachments:

22-0067 Class "B" Beer License application for The Breaking Point d/b/a Breaking 

Point, Courtney J Hayden, Agent, located at 2011 N Richmond St, 

contingent upon approval the Health and Inspections departments.

Breaking Point.pdf

Resolution_The Breaking Point_SUP#5-21_SIGNED.pdf

StaffReport_Breaking Point_SUP_For01-12-22.pdf

Attachments:

22-0129 Class "B" Beer License application for Taco House LLC d/b/a Taco 

House, Roberto Martinez, Agent, located at 135 E Wisconsin Ave, 

contingent upon approval from the Finance and Inspections departments.

Taco House.pdf

Resolution_135 E Wisconsin Ave_SUP#3-20_SIGNED_attached to liquior license.pdf

Attachments:

22-0188 Change of Agent application for Aldi Inc d/b/a Aldi #69, Jamison Pierce, 

New Agent, located at 2310 S Kensington Dr.

Jamison Pierce S&L.pdfAttachments:

22-0189 Change of Agent application for Aldi Inc d/b/a Aldi #68, Michael J Haash, 

New Agent, located at 116 N Linwood Ave.

Michael J Haasch S&L.pdfAttachments:

22-0083 Cigarette License application for Fox River House LLC d/b/a Fox River 

House, Cassidy Evers, Agent, located at 211 S Walnut St.

Fox River House S&L.pdfAttachments:

6. Information Items

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 2/18/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20760
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ffaf6372-c706-44f4-8d09-57c09c7db21b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=af40ef4c-60cb-4677-8fd4-3c3af719a904.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d968cd6e-1a5d-4958-a082-ec7170a7bd8e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20598
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bf26312f-9650-4614-ac88-d17742488772.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20618
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ff849912-c606-4f4f-b426-c079f139895e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=eff98671-09cb-45e7-8050-63e431c21817.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=75ac4d5e-97df-40cc-8a30-954573333025.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20680
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e4d48784-d927-495d-86e8-545261e7b25b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a920304f-d787-4f00-8959-dc4046289638.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20739
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=53eb7805-7345-41ed-b943-6d897638982f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20740
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=36bbe991-4c1d-4e5f-94b2-0747d0263c23.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20634
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0b04c147-9b15-462f-9546-cbe43fde9c87.pdf


February 23, 2022Safety and Licensing Committee Meeting Agenda - Final

22-0052 Special Events:

Rally for Fair Maps, End Gerrymandering, Fair Maps Team, Houdini Plaza, 

January 21, 2022

Missing, Murdered Indigenous Women, Girls and 2 Spirits, Houdini Plaza, 

February 14, 2022

Avenue of Ice, Creative Downtown Appleton, College Ave amenity strip, 

beginning on February 18, 2022 

22-0206 Police Department Information on alcohol law violations.

22-0207 Director's Reports

1. City Clerk

- Spring Election updates

2. Police Chief

- Squad design change for special vehicles

- CCRT update

- Staffing update

3. Fire Chief

 

7. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during this 

meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request 

and if Feasible.

Page 3 City of Appleton Printed on 2/18/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20603
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20757
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20758


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Safety and Licensing Committee

5:30 PM Council Chambers, 6th FloorWednesday, January 26, 2022

Call meeting to order1.

Roll call of membership2.

Reed, Schultz, Van Zeeland, Smith and HartzheimPresent: 5 - 

Approval of minutes from previous meeting3.

22-0048 Approval of minutes from previous meeting.

 

S & L Minutes 1-12-22.pdfAttachments:

Hartzheim moved, seconded by Schultz, that the Minutes be approved. Roll 

Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Reed, Schultz, Smith and Hartzheim4 - 

Absent: Van Zeeland1 - 

Public Hearings/Appearances4.

Action Items5.

21-1744 Class "B" Beer and "Class C" Wine License application for Alpine Swift 

LLC, Adam Marty, Agent, located at 1016 E Pacific St, contingent upon 

approval from all departments.

Alpine Swift LLC.pdf

StaffReport_AlpineSwift_SUP_For01-12-22.pdf

Resolution_AlpineSwift_SUP#4-21_SIGNED.pdf

Attachments:

Hartzheim moved, seconded by Smith, that the license be recommended for 

approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Reed, Schultz, Van Zeeland, Smith and Hartzheim5 - 

Page 1City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20599
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8639b17a-f6b0-425d-83f9-8dbe3cd5ecc0.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20491
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e83d18d1-ca27-41d2-8ee7-218f3fb857d2.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=95263e6d-6d70-4e5a-95f8-1386dd765456.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fe979433-047e-4d79-a95e-fc165814ba7f.pdf


January 26, 2022Safety and Licensing Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

22-0046 Resolution #1-R-22 Intoxicated Bartender Ordinance

#1-R-22 Intoxicated Bartenders.pdf

Intoxicated Bartender incidents 2021.pdf

Attachments:

Motion and second to deny were withdrawn.

Motion to hold until February 23rd to allow for additional revisions carried 5/0.

Schultz moved, seconded by Reed, that the Resolution be held. Roll Call. 

Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Reed, Schultz, Van Zeeland, Smith and Hartzheim5 - 

22-0061 Request for Nuisance Ordinance Update

 

Nuisance Ordianace Memo revised  .pdfAttachments:

Hartzheim moved, seconded by Schultz, that the Ordinance update be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Reed, Schultz, Van Zeeland, Smith and Hartzheim5 - 

22-0007 Reserve "Class B" Liquor License application for Souvannapha 

Chomsisengphet d/b/a Basil Cafe, located at 1513 N Richmond St, 

contingent upon approval from all departments.

Basil Cafe.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was recommended for approval

Aye: Reed, Schultz, Van Zeeland, Smith and Hartzheim5 - 

21-1789 "Class A" Liquor License application for Banee Corporation d/b/a 

Appleton Mobil, Parmeet Arora, Agent, located at 1717 W College Ave, 

contingent upon approval from all departments.  

Appleton Mobil.pdfAttachments:

Hartzheim moved, seconded by Reed, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Reed, Schultz, Van Zeeland, Smith and Hartzheim5 - 

22-0030 Temporary Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Wine License application for 

St. Pius X, Gerry Graphos, Person in Charge, located at 500 W 

Marquette St, contingent upon approval from all departments.

St Pius X Valentines Dinner S&L.pdfAttachments:

Hartzheim moved, seconded by Reed, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Reed, Schultz, Van Zeeland, Smith and Hartzheim5 - 

Page 2City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20597
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=36a7a4e9-b9a2-4e8c-81b0-9d8c1e9c1476.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6f2819ca-80d3-4d0d-ad0e-9db2f8874e28.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20612
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5017e0fe-a28b-4db6-8ac0-56a7d99ac7c7.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20558
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e3df38ce-4823-4449-8613-f11b344986d1.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20535
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2847f951-a1f2-4dbe-bff8-f2159aea0f45.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20581
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fdaf2c3a-c222-4730-914d-1ae2aa56f730.pdf


January 26, 2022Safety and Licensing Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

22-0050 Proposal to Modify the Duration of Farm Market Licenses.

1-26-22 Farm Market License Change.pdfAttachments:

Hartzheim moved, seconded by Reed, that the Farm Market License 

modification be recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the 

following vote:

Aye: Reed, Schultz, Van Zeeland, Smith and Hartzheim5 - 

Information Items6.

22-0064 Alcohol License Application Review Process

S&L - Alcohol License Application Review Process - NJV 

01-25-2022.pdf

Attachments:

22-0052 Special Events:

Rally for Fair Maps, End Gerrymandering, Fair Maps Team, Houdini 

Plaza, January 21, 2022

Avenue of Ice, Creative Downtown Appleton, College Ave amenity strip, 

beginning on February 18, 2022 

22-0051 Police Department information on alcohol law violations. 

 

22-0049 Director's Reports

 

Adjournment7.

Hartzheim moved, seconded by Reed, that the meeting be adjourned at 6:23 

p.m. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Reed, Schultz, Van Zeeland, Smith and Hartzheim5 - 

Page 3City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20601
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4d1a5a49-ba49-481b-a89e-9c3df75e1f51.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20615
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4d33731f-2964-4e11-b213-6d148eb06d7c.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20603
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20602
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20600


Resolution #1-R-22 
Intoxicated Bartender Ordinance 

Submitted By: Alderperson Smith 
Date: 1/19/2022 
Referred To: Safety & Licensing Committee 

 

Whereas a need has been identified, 

Be it resolved that the following resolution is submitted, 

It shall be unlawful for the licensee or any employee of a licensed establishment to be 

under the influence of an intoxicant while performing alcohol beverage services on the 

licensed premises. Under the influence means that the individual has a blood alcohol 

content of 0.08 or more or otherwise has consumed a sufficient amount of alcohol, 

controlled substance, or combination of alcohol and controlled substances or any other 

drug, to cause the individual to be less able to exercise clear judgement and reasonable 

care in the exercise of services performed. If a law enforcement officer has probable 

cause that a violation of this section has occurred, the officer, prior to an arrest, may 

request the individual to provide a sample of his or her breath for a preliminary breath 

screening test using a device approved by the State of Wisconsin for this purpose. The 

officer may request the individual to provide subsequent sample(s) of his or her breath if 

the officer has probable cause to conduct further preliminary breath screening test(s). 

The result of the preliminary breath screening may be used by the law enforcement 

officer for the purpose of deciding whether or not the person shall be arrested for a 

violation of this section. Refusal to submit to a requested test may be considered by the 

Common Council as grounds for revocation, suspension, non-issuance, or non-renewal 

of the server’s operator’s license.  

 



  

                                      Chief Todd Thomas  

                   Appleton Police Department  
                                                                                                          222 South Walnut Street  Appleton, WI  54911-5899 

                 “Excellence in Police Service”        (920) 832-5500                                          
                                   

Core Values of the Appleton Police Department: “Compassion, Integrity, Courage” 

 
To:  Chairperson Katie Van Zeeland, Safety and Licensing Committee 

  Alderperson Mike Smith   

From:  Chief Todd Thomas  

Date:   January 24, 2022 

Subject: Incidents involving intoxicated bartenders - 2021  

 
 

Council Members,  

 

 

Lt. Adam Nagel did research into the number of incidents where we needed to act on a bartender 

who was intoxicated. I attached the information he was able to locate, we know there were other 

incidents that did not rise to the level of a report or citation.    

 

 

 

05/17/21 

Appleton Officers responded to a disturbance at a bar on N. Richmond St. The bartender and 

patron were both involved in a physical fight. Both the bartender and patron were cited for 

Disorderly Conduct. The bartender submitted to a PBT which read 0.197. The officer indicated 

that alcohol was a contributing factor in the fight.  

 

05/23/21 

Appleton Officer conducts a traffic stop on a downtown bartender around bar close. Bartender 

smelled like alcohol. He claimed it was due to bartending and he had not been drinking. 

Bartender was arrested for OWI. The blood test came back at 0.202.   

 

05/28/21 

Appleton Officers responded to an anonymous complaint of a “very” intoxicated bartender at N. 

Richmond St bar. They arrived and observed the bartender was extremely intoxicated. They 

described her as being in no condition to be serving alcohol. She submitted to a PBT which read 

0.245.  

 

07/25/21 

Appleton Officers responded to a complaint of loud music coming from W College Ave bar. 

Officers arrived at the bar and observed loud noise. Officers had contact with someone 

identifying themselves as the owner of the bar. This person had slurred speech and appeared to 

be highly intoxicated. When asked to vacate the bar at bar close, they argued with officers and 

were eventually cited for failing to vacate the bar. A PBT sample was not obtained.  

 



  

                                      Chief Todd Thomas  

                   Appleton Police Department  
                                                                                                          222 South Walnut Street  Appleton, WI  54911-5899 

                 “Excellence in Police Service”        (920) 832-5500                                          
                                   

Core Values of the Appleton Police Department: “Compassion, Integrity, Courage” 

 

11/04/21 

Appleton Officers received a complaint for a welfare check at a College Ave. bar. An 

anonymous person called dispatch and had a concern about an intoxicated bartender. Officers 

contacted the bartender. She was described as having slurred speech, redness in her eyes and was 

stumbling as she walked. The bartender in this case did not submit to a PBT and closed the bar. 

 

 

12/30/21  

At approximately 0255hrs officers noticed that an E Wisconsin Ave bar still had its lights and the 

OPEN sign on. When they arrived, they found multiple intoxicated people inside the bar. This 

included a person walking out of the business with two 24 packs of beer. The bar manager and 

an underage bartender were both intoxicated and no position to safely serve alcohol. Multiple 

citations issued. Both refused PBTs.  

 

 

 

Lt. Nagel also spoke with the Neenah City Attorney about their ordinance.  The Neenah ordinance 

was passed in 2013, before the current attorney was in their position.  They looked through the 

notes for the council meeting at the time and were not able to find a specific reason for enacting 

the ordinance.  They were clear that they don’t randomly walk into establishments and PBT 

bartenders, and he is not aware of any citations being given, but they have used it a few times for 

educational purposes.  

 

If the ordinance is passed by the council, we would anticipate the same approach. We would 

investigate only on a complaint or if we are in the establishment for another reason and have 

probable cause to believe that a bartender is in violation of the ordinance.  

 

Chief Todd Thomas 



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

February 17, 2022 

To: Katie Van Zeeland, Chair – Safety & Licensing Committee and Common Council 

From: Jeremy Hansen, Fire Chief 

Cc: Ryan Weyers, Deputy Fire Chief 

Re: Addendum to Auto-Aid Agreement between City of Appleton and the Cities of Neenah and Menasha 

 

 
In May 2012, the Appleton Fire Department (AFD) finalized an automatic assistance agreement (auto-aid) with the Cities 
of Neenah and Menasha, specifically, Neenah/Menasha Fire Rescue (NMFR). The auto-aid agreement, in partnership 
with Outagamie and Winnebago County Communication Centers, automatically dispatched the closest unit(s), regardless 
of municipal boundaries, for fire and emergency medical incidents through computer-aided dispatch (CAD). This process 
was seemly when both counties had the same CAD software. Aid agreements are developed when the agencies provide 
like services. This is done so community members do not see a deviation in the level of service they receive from the 
other organization. 
 
The Outagamie County Communications Center switched to a new CAD software in June 2018. The interface between 
the two county’s CAD software no longer communicated. Staff from the two counties, software vendors, and multiple 
fire departments worked diligently over the past 3.5 years to reinstitute auto-aid between the communities. As of 
January 2022, the CAD systems are interfacing, and auto-aid is working for many of the fire departments on the 
boarders of Outagamie and Winnebago County. It should be noted that mutual aid, when a fire department requests 
another agency to respond into their community, has continued to operate without interruption.  
 
The AFD upgraded our medical service level from Emergency Medical Responder (EMR) to Emergency Medical 
Technician (EMT) in January 2021.  NMFR continues to practice at the EMR level. The AFD is requesting approval to 
amend the auto-aid agreement (see Addendum to Auto-Aid Agreement) to include auto-aid for fire response only. This 
is like what is in place between the AFD and the Town of Grand Chute Fire Department on the west and northwest sides 
of the city. 
 
Lastly, the AFD and NMFR agree that either agency can request assistance for fire and emergency medical response 
through a mutual aid request to their respective dispatch center. 
 
 If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me at (920) 832-5810. Thank you for your 
consideration. 
 

View our current job openings at governmentjobs.com/careers/appletonwi 

CITY OF APPLETON 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

 

(920) 832-5810 (920) 832-5830 
700 N. Drew Street 

Appleton, WI 54911 
jeremy.hansen@appleton.org 

 

https://www.governmentjobs.com/careers/appletonwi
mailto:jeremy.hansen@appleton.org


Amendment to Memorandum of Understanding for 
Agreement for Automatic Assistant between 

Neenah Menasha Fire Rescue and City of Appleton Fire Department 
Page 1 of 3 

AMENDMENT to  

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR  
AGREEMENT FOR AUTOMATIC ASSISTANCE 

between the cities of 
NEENAH and MENASHA and APPLETON 

 

I. THE PARTIES 
 
1.01 Appleton Fire Department, with offices at 700 North Drew Street, Appleton, Wisconsin  
 54911 (“AFD”) 

 
1.02 Neenah Menasha Fire Rescue, with offices at 1254 East Columbian Avenue, Neenah, 

Wisconsin  54956 (“NMFR”). 
 

II. THE RECITALS  
 
2.01 AFD and NMFR entered into an agreement for automatic assistance with an effective date 

of June 1, 2011.  
 

2.02 The Chiefs of AFD and NMFR entered into a memorandum of understanding for the 
agreement for automatic assistance with an effective date of May 10, 2012. 
 

2.03 AFD and NMFR mutually agree to continue this agreement for the mutual benefit of all 
communities. 

 

III. THE AGREEMENT 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
The Recitals are hereby made a part of the Agreement. 
 
3.01 The following section shall be struck and removed from the memorandum of 

understanding: 
 

Emergency Medical Services (EMS) (E Edward Incidents) First Responder: 
 
A. NMFR will provide the following to the City of Appleton: 
 

(1) One Engine staffed with a minimum of three qualified firefighters – 
(Area as defined on attached map.) 

 



Amendment to Memorandum of Understanding for 
Agreement for Automatic Assistant between 

Neenah Menasha Fire Rescue and City of Appleton Fire Department 
Page 2 of 3 

 
B. City of Appleton will provide the following to NMFR: 
 

(1) One Engine staffed with a minimum of three qualified firefighters – 
(Area as defined on attached map.) 

 
3.02 All other previously agreed upon terms and conditions remain unchanged. 
 

IV. MISCELLANEOUS  
 

4.01 In the event that any part of this Agreement is found to be illegal, it shall be stricken from 
the Agreement and the Agreement interpreted as if that clause did not exist. 
 

4.02 This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, either by original signature or 
verified electronic signature, each of which shall be deemed an original, but such 
counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same agreement.  The headings in 
this Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only and shall not constitute a 
part hereof. 
 

4.03 This Agreement may be supplemented or amended only by written instrument executed 
by the parties affected by such supplement or amendment.   

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused the forgoing instrument to be executed 
on   this ______ day of ______________________, 2022. 

 
City of Appleton 

 
 
 

By:  _______________________________ 
       Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor 

 Attest: _______________________________ 
             Kami Lynch, City Clerk 

 
Approved as to form:  Appleton Fire Department 
   
   
___________________________________ 
Christopher R. Behrens, City Attorney 

 _____________________________________ 
Jeremy Hansen, Fire Chief 

CL: A22-0078 

  



Amendment to Memorandum of Understanding for 
Agreement for Automatic Assistant between 

Neenah Menasha Fire Rescue and City of Appleton Fire Department 
Page 3 of 3 

City of Neenah 
 
 

 
By:  _______________________________ 
       Dean R. Kaufert, Mayor 

 Attest: _______________________________ 
             Charlotte Nagel, City Clerk 

 
Approved as to form:  Neenah Menasha Fire Rescue 
   
   
___________________________________ 
Adam J. Westbrook, City Attorney 

 _____________________________________ 
Kevin Kloehn, Fire Chief 

 
 
 

City of Menasha 
 
 

 
By:  _______________________________ 
       Donald Merkes, Mayor 

 Attest: _______________________________ 
             Haley Krautkramer, City Clerk 

 
Approved as to form:   
   
   
___________________________________ 
Pamela Captain, City Attorney 

  

 





















¤

¤

¤

¤¤

ME
MO

RI
AL

 D
R

LY
NN

DA
LE

 D
R

S.T.H. 441

MEMORIAL DR

ON
EI

DA
 S

T

CALUMET ST

PLANK RD

AP
PL

ET
ON

 R
D

LA
W

E S
T

KENSI N
G TO

N 
DR

KE
NS

IN
GT

ON
 D

R

MIDWAY RD

CALUMET ST

MIDWAY RD

LA
KE

 PA
RK

 R
D

MANITOWOC RD

S.T
.H

. 4
41

JOHN ST

CALUMET ST

PROSPECT AV

PROSPECT AV

MANITOWOC RD

AL
LIA

NC
E 

DR

MIDWAY RD

EI
SE

NH
OW

ER
 D

R

CO
OP

 R
D

CO
OP

 R
D

KE
RR

Y L
A

PO
PL

AR
 LA

PR
AI

RI
E 

CT

PA
RT

RI
DG

E 
CT

KE
RN

AN
 AV

SOUTH RIVER ST

MCKINLEY ST

FO
ST

ER
 C

T

VERBRICK ST

RIVER DR

W RIVERVIEW DR

SU
ND

OW
N 

LA

AN
GE

LA
 D

R

SUNRAY CT

BONA AV

LEE CT

GUYETTE DR

TUCKAWAY LA

BARKER LA

GR
AC

E 
CT

HANSON DR

GL
AD

YS
 AV

ME
AD

OW
VI

EW
 LA

ROELAND AV

JA
SO

N 
DR

PLAZA DR

FO
UN

TA
IN

 AV

TE
LU

LA
H 

AV

TAFT AV WA
LD

EN
 AV

HARDING DR

THEODORE LA

BUCHANAN ST

LYDIA LA

THISTLE DOWN CT

GA
RD

NE
RS

 R
OW

QU
ES

T D
R VANTAGE DR

MELVIN ST

OL
SO

N 
AV

SU
NN

Y 
SL

OP
E 

CTRI
VE

RD
AL

E 
DR

ST
AT

E 
ST

W
ES

TH
AV

EN
 P

L

SECOND ST

EVERETT ST

CO
TT

ER
 S

T W
HI

TM
AN

 AV
E

GR
ID

ER
 S

T

HASKELL ST HASKEL ST

PINE ST

ROGERS AV

CIVIC ST

FRONT ST

THIRD ST

FOURTH ST

RI
VE

R 
FR

ON
T C

T

PROSPECT AV

JACKMAN ST

VU
LC

AN
 S

T

SOUTH ISLAND ST

RAILROAD AV

ORANGE ST

JOHN ST

DEWEY ST

MARION ST

TRACY STROCKY CTES
TH

ER
BR

OO
K 

CT

WEST AVWEST CTEAST STARBOR LA

W
EI

MA
R 

ST

AR
LIN

GT
ON

 S
T

SC
HA

EF
ER

 S
T

BU
CH

AN
AN

 S
T

JO
SE

PH
 S

T

CH
RI

ST
IN

E 
ST

ESTHER ST

LOURDES DR

MI
DP

AR
K 

DR

FR
ED

ER
IC

K 
ST

CO
VE

NA
NT

 LA

KE
NS

IN
GT

ON
 C

T

AU
RO

RA
 D

R

SU
NS

HI
NE

 D
R

DA
YB

RE
AK

 D
R

LOURDES DR

MEADOWLARK LA

KILLDEER LA

RAIL R
D 

JA
DE

 D
R

CO
VE

NA
NT

 LA

CL
AR

A S
T

IR
MA

 S
T

TH
EO

DO
RE

 S
T

MA
TT

HI
AS

 S
T

FID
EL

IS
 S

T

MI
DP

AR
K 

DR

EASTFIELD CT

EMMERS DR

GRISHABER CT

RE
BE

CC
A L

A

W
EI

MA
R 

ST

CEDARWOOD DR

TRACY CT

LE
E 

ST

BLUEBIRD LA

SILVER SPUR LA

REINKE CT

SO
UT

H 
ME

AD
OW

S 
DR

FREMONT ST

CA
RP

EN
TE

R 
ST

HA
RM

ON
 S

T

RI
TG

ER
 S

T

JOHNSON CT

JA
CK

SO
N 

ST

MO
NR

OE
 S

T

LINCOLN ST

EDISON AV

RIVER RD

RI
VE

RV
IE

W
 LA

PI
ER

CE
 C

T

OA
KC

RE
ST

 C
T

LU
TZ

 DR

LE
HM

AN
N 

LA

AL
IC

IA 
DR

OAKCREST DR

OU
TA

GA
MI

E 
ST

CEDAR ST

HE
RB

ER
T S

T

HICKORY CT

CHARLES ST

BARTELL CT

DR
IS

CO
LL

 S
T

CHARLES ST

LEONARD ST
CA

RR
IA

GE
 LA

LAMPLIGHTER CT

WEATHERSTONE DR

KA
SP

ER
 D

R
MA

YF
AI

R 
DR

MO
HA

W
K 

DR

SE
MI

NO
LE

 R
D

CHEROKEE DR

SE
MI

NO
LE

 C
T

CA
RV

ER
 LA

OR
CH

AR
D 

DR

HI
LL

CR
ES

T D
R

DO
UG

LA
S 

ST

CO
NN

EL
L S

T

HY
CR

ES
T D

R

REID DR

RE
ID

 C
T

GARDEN CT

CH
ER

RY
 C

T

LYNCH AV

BO
UT

EN
 S

T

VERBRICK ST

AD
AM

S 
ST

SA
ND

ER
S 

ST

PE
AB

OD
Y 

ST

W
ILL

KI
E 

ST

RA
ML

EN
 C

T

RAMLEN CT

FOSTER ST

COOLIDGE AV

MURRAY AV

FA
IR

WA
Y C

TSHAW ST

GOODALL ST

DENNISON ST

CARROLL ST

COOLIDGE AV COOLIDGE CT

W
EI

MA
R 

ST

TE
LU

LA
H 

AV

WA
LD

EN
 AV

KE
RN

AN
 AV

SC
HA

EF
ER

 S
T

REGAL TE

REGAL TE
EASTHAVEN CT

PHILIP LA

WITTMANN CT

SU
NL

ITE
 C

T

SUNBEAM CT DE
RK

S 
DR

EI
SE

NH
OW

ER
 D

R 

PLANK RD 

ENDEAVOR DRLA
KE

LA
ND

 D
R

DE
ST

IN
AT

IO
N 

DR

DRIFTWOOD LAREEF CT
INGLEWOOD PL

GATEWOOD DR

DIETZEN DR

BR
EN

TW
OO

D 
LA

MA
TT

HI
AS

 S
T

BR
EN

TW
OOD C

T

BRADLEY LA

HO
RI

ZO
N 

DR

ER
IC

 D
R

GLORIA CT

AUDREY LA

EASTWOOD CT

CL
OV

ER
 LA

BE
RR

Y D
R COLONY CT

GL
AD

YS
 AV

GR
EE

NV
IE

W
 S

T

EA
ST

 S
T

HA
RM

ON
 S

T

HARDING DR

HOOVER AV

TAFT AV

WILSON AV

HARDING DR

ROELAND AV

JE
FF

ER
SO

N 
ST

MA
DI

SO
N 

ST
VI

ST
A C

T

HOOVER AV
PAMELA CT

VA
LE

RI
E 

DR

VALLEY RD

AS
TO

R 
LA

SCHINDLER PL

SU
MM

ER
SE

T D
R

SYLVAN AV

W
HE

AT
FIE

LD
 D

R

LAYTON AV

MITCHELL AV LA
NC

E A
V

CA
RP

EN
TE

R 
ST

DE
LL

W
OO

D 
ST

PARK HILLS DR

EA
ST

 S
T

SYLVAN AV

THISTLE DOWN CT
WHITE BIRCH CT

GL
AD

YS
 AV

RAINBOW CT

MOON BEAM TR

MO
ON

 B
EA

M 
CT

BAYBERRY ST

STRAWBERRY LA

CRANBERRY DR

STEAMBOAT LA

VAIL LA

PARKSIDE BLVD

NORTHSHORE BLVD

ED
GE

WA
TE

R 
DR

MA
LL

AR
D 

DR MILIS DR

HULKE DR

ORCHARD BLOSSOM DR

CEDAR RIDGE DR

JO
HA

NN
 D

R

BE
RR

YF
IE

LD
 LA

TE
LU

LA
H 

AV

HU
CK

LE
BE

RR
Y 

LA

BL
UE

BE
RR

Y 
LA

JANET LA

SC
HO

OL
 AV

CO
BU

RG
 C

T

BEDFORD LABO
YD

 C
T

TR
ILL

UM
 LA

DIANE LA

SHADE TREE LA

BO
B-

O-
LIN

K 
LA

SC
AR

LE
T O

AK
 LA

W
HI

TE
 B

IR
CH

 LA

SCARLET OAK CT
WOODCREST DR

HE
ML

OC
K 

LA

JUNIPER LA

HA
CK

BE
RR

Y 
LA

MEADOW GROVE BLVD 

BLUE SPRUCE LAIV
Y S

T

SHASTA LA

AS
HB

RO
OK

 S
T

DO
UG

LA
S 

ST
DO

UG
LA

S 
ST

LIL
AS

 D
R

PE
RK

IN
S 

ST
PE

RK
IN

S 
ST SEYMOUR ST

MA
DI

SO
N 

ST

ROCK-A-WAY RD

JAMES ST

BL
UE

 S
PR

UC
E 

LA

SY
CA

MO
RE

 LA
VE

RM
ILL

IO
N 

ST

FR
IE

ND
LY

 S
TPRIM ROSE LA

KRAMER LA

W
HI

P-
PO

OR
-W

ILL
 LA

STONEMEADOW WAY

CALUMET ST

FA
IR

VI
EW

 S
T

ST
OR

Y 
ST

HARRISON ST

MAPLE ST

CHI CKADEE LA

HEIDEMANN DR 

RAVINIA 
PL

HYCREST CT

BA
RT

EL
L D

R

HERITA GE WO ODS DR

RO
BIN

CR
ES

T 
CT

W
HE

AT
FIE

LD 
CT

JA
CK

SO
N 

ST

LA
W

E 
ST

LAYTON AV

MITCHELL AV

CY
PR

ES
S 

ST

SO
LIT

UD
E 

LA

TA
HO

E 
LA

AS
CH

EN
 P

UT
TE

L D
R

CH
RI

ST
OP

HE
R 

CT

MEADOW GROV E BLVD

PHEASANT CT
PARTRIDGE CT

BLACKBERRY CT

W
ILD

BE
RR

Y 
LA

GROVE ST

MIDWAY RD

RIVERDALE DR

ELMVIEW DR

MU
EL

LE
R 

ST

SU
MM

IT 
ST

PHEASANT CT

HU
MM

IN
GB

IR
D 

LA

PRAIRIE CT

HA
MP

TO
N 

CT

CH
ES

TN
UT

 LA

QUINTI N CT

FOREST ST

W
OO

DE
ND

AL
E 

W
AY

ROBIN WAY

OPPORTUNITY WAY

OP
PO

RT
UN

ITY
 W

AY

PL
ANK CIR

BRIGHTON CIR

SCHAEFER CIR

SO
LA

R 
CI

R

W
EL

CO
ME

 C
IR

SC
HA

EF
ER

 C
IR

PL
AN

K 
CI

R

CANADIAN NATIONAL

SECOND ST

CANADIAN NATIONAL

CANADIAN NATIONAL

HIDDEN ACRES CT

GR
EE

N T
RE

E C
T

LORNA LA 

GREENDALE ST

JENNIE ST

GENEVA RD

EUGENE ST

GREEN
WOOD DR

WOODLA
ND DR

MEL
ISS

A S
T

ME
AD

OW
VI

EW
 D

R

FIE
LD

CR
ES

T D
R

DE
ER

FIE
LD

 AV

BO
NN

IE 
DR

ME
LIS

SA
 ST

JENNIE ST

DREAMFIELD LA

FIE
LD

VIE
W 

DR

SO
UT

HF
IE

LD
 D

R

SWEETBRIAR LA

SPENCER VILLAGE CT

LIL
AS

 D
R

TILLMAN ST

BUTTE DES MORTS CT

MEADOWBROOK CT

MEADOWBROOK LA

MEADOWBROOK CT

WI
LS

ON
 C

T (
pr) CA

ME
LO

T C
T (

pr)RE
GE

NC
Y C

T (
pr)

CE
DA

RV
IEW

 W
AY

MC
KA

YL
A D

R

DY
LA

N 
DR

BRITTANY DR

AUSTIN DR

LANDON DR

GA
RD

NE
RS

 R
OW

PH
LO

X 
DR

IVEB
OU

QU
ET

 D
R

GROVE ST

BR
IAR

W
OO

D 
DR

DRIFTWOOD WAY

AP
PL

E 
CT

LUCERNE CT

DR
UM

 C
OR

PS
 D

R

BALDWIN ST

MANITOWOC RD

BR
IG

HT
ON

 B
EA

CH
 R

D OA
K P

AR
K 

DR

OA
K P

AR
K 

DR

DUTCH HOLLOW ROYAL OAK CT

MISTY MEADOWS LA
BLUEJAY WAY

HOME AV

TU
CK

AW
AY

 C
T

ON
EI

DA
 S

T

PRAIRIE VIEW CT

DEER HAVEN DR

PR
OV

IN
CE

 TE
R

HOFFMANN CT

MO
RG

AN
 TA

YL
OR

 C
T

MANITOWOC RD

HO
NE

Y B
UN

CH
 C

T

RED FESCUE CT

TREFOIL CT

LUPINE CT

BL
UE

GR
AS

S 
LN

GEORGETOWN PL

BR
OOK CT

KE
LS

EY

EDEN CT

WHIS
PE

R F
AL

LS
 DR

IVE

WHISPER FALLS CT

FOUNTAIN WAY

CLOVER CT

VILLA WAY

LUGANO ST

LU
GA

NO
 ST

WINNEPEG ST

TA
NA

 C
T

TAHOE CT

MA
NI

TO
BA

 S
T

BO
X E

LD
ER

 W
AY

EDUCATION WAY

WOODLAND ROAD

OT
TE

 C
T

HEARTHSTONE DR

DA
RB

OY
 C

T
SA

PP
HI

RE
 C

T

SIL
VE

R 
CT

JA
DE

 C
T

CR
YS

TA
L D

R

DI
AM

ON
D 

CT

DA
RB

OY
 D

R

WOODSEDGE CT

GARNET DR

GA
RN

ET
 C

T

GA
RN

ET
 D

R

CA
TH

Y C
T

JE
FF

 C
T

BR
OE

K D
R.

PALISADES DR

FIR
EL

AN
E 9

FIRELANE 8

FIRELANE 7

FIRELANE 3

FIRELANE 2

KITTIVER CT

BE
AU

LIE
U 

RD

PA
RK

 D
R

12
TH

 S
T

11
TH

 S
T

9T
H 

ST

10
TH

 S
T

8T
H 

ST

7T
H 

ST

6T
H 

ST

AHNAIP ST LA
KE

 RD

LA
KE

 RO
AD

WA
LN

UT
 S

T

PIN
E 

ST

NA
SS

AU
 S

T

OA
K S

T

NA
YM

UT
 S

T

EL
M 

ST

CL
EV

EL
AN

D 
ST

PA
RK

 ST

WI
NN

EB
AG

O 
AV

LO
PA

S S
T

WI
LL

OW
 LA

KEYES ST

WINNEBAGO CT

HEWITT ST

NICOLET BLVD

HARRYS GATEWAY

RIVER ISLAND CT

SUNRISE DR

TA
NN

EM
AU

M 
TRSTROEBE ISLAND DR

SU
MA

C 
LA

RI
VE

R 
OA

KS
 C

T

ANNEX LA

HI
GH

RI
DG

E T
E

NO
RT

HR
ID

GE
 C

T

CE
NT

UR
Y O

AK
S 

CTCENTURY OAKS DR

OLDE MIDWAY RD

FORKIN ST

HA
PP

Y V
AL

LE
Y D

R
EL

RU
 D

R
PA

RA
DI

SE
 LA

MI
DW

AY
 PL

KE
NW

OO
D 

DR

PA
RK

SID
E 

DR

WI
TT

MA
NN

 PA
RK

 LATWELVE OAKS LA

CL
AU

DE
 S

T

PARIS ST

MILL ST

CENTER STHIG
H S

T
WA

SH
IN

GT
ON

 S
T

KAUKAUNA ST
MAIN ST

CHUTE ST

4TH ST

PO
LO

NI
A S

T

LAKE ST

LA
KE

CR
ES

T D
R

EM
ILY

 S
T

KIN
ZIE

 C
T

FREDERICK ST

SUNSET DR

BUTTE DES MORTS DR

EDGEWATER RD

BULLARD CT

LISBON ST

GRANDVIEW AVE

TYLER CT EASY ST

WI
LS

ON
 S

TO

HARDING ST

4TH STSHEBOYGAN ST4TH ST

DE
 PE

RE
 ST

MA
NI

TO
W

OC
 ST

GR
EE

N 
BA

Y 
ST

IC
E 

ST

KO
CN

EM
AC

 ST

BROAD ST

1ST ST

BO
RE

NZ
 C

T

BRIGHTON DR

RUE REYNARD RD
BRIGHTON BEACH RD

BE
SS

IE
 O

HA
LL

OR
AN

 LA

FIVE OAKS PARK DR DA
KO

TA
 G

RO
VE

 S
T

PEARL ST

EM
ER

AL
D 

CT

GA
RN

ET
 C

T

OAKRIDGE CT

OAKRIDGE DR

CRESTWOOD CT

PINEWOOD CT

NORTHBROOK CT

FARMSTEAD DR

PINECREST CT

CR
OO

KE
D P

IN
E C

T

EMONS RD

EASTOWNE CT

DON'S DRHARVARD CT

CA
RO

LS
 LA

WI
LL

OW
 C

RE
ST

 C
T

RA
ILR

OA
D 

ST

STILLWATER TR

MA
IN

 S
T

WO
OD

ST
OC

K 
LA

SP
RI

NG
FIE

LD
 C

T

COUNTRYAYRE CT
JUST ABOUT LA

LA
VE

ND
ER

 LA

KA
MK

ES
 AV

CREEKSIDE CT

CO
OP

 R
D

FE
NC

EL
IN

E D
R

WESTOWNE CT

CREEKVIEW LA

EASTOWNE LA

EISENHOW
ER DR

SPRINGFIELD DR

PIN
EC

RE
ST

 B
LV

D

WHITEPINE DR

SPRINGFIELD DR

EMONS RD

RIDGEVIEW CTWU
ND

RO
W

 C
T

BREEZEWOOD DR

TAMARACK DR

MAPLEWOOD CT

RO
GE

RS
 LAKEBE CT

TRUMPET LA

AN
MA

RI
TA

 C
T RA

ND
Y'S

 LA

GALES LA

THERESE CT

RO
GE

RS
 LA

MARTIN LA

AL
EX

 D
R

ROGERS LARI
DG

EW
OO

D 
CT

GO
SS

 AV
ES

TA
TE

 D
R

BA
RT

LE
IN

 C
T

FRITSCH ST
HA

RO
LD

 D
R

SANDY'S LA

CI
RC

LE
 D

R

CH
AT

EA
U 

TE
RR

IS

CI
RC

LE
 D

R

BO
NN

IE 
DR

LIN
DA

 AV

ST
EA

D 
DR

HO
ME

 AV

ST
ILL

ME
AD

OW
 LA

LUCERNE DR

TRADERS RD

9TH ST

STARDUST DR

MARIA LA

ST
AD

LE
R 

CT

MOONLIGHT CT

APPLEWOOD DRCOTTONWOOD DRPINEWOOD CT

SO
UT

HF
IE

LD
 D

R RIDGECREST LA
COVENTRY CT

MO
SS

HA
VE

N 
CT

VALLEY RD

WINWOOD LA

LARKSPUR DR

OMEGA DR

PALISADES DR

PALISADES DR

GREGOR CT
GEORGE ST

KATHERINE ST

ANTON CT

TE
AL

W
OO

D 
ST

BA
LD

W
IN

 C
T

PA
LIS

AD
ES

 LA

BA
RB

AR
A

TH
ER

ES
A A

V

CA
RL

ET
ON

 AV

RIVERVIEW CT

PA
LIS

AD
ES

 D
R

BE
CK

 ST

BU
D 

DR

LA
KE

 SH
OR

E D
R

LA
KE

VIE
W 

LA

HI
CK

ER
Y H

OL
LO

W
 LA

DU
NN

IN
G 

ST

SU
NS

ET
 LA

RA
CI

NE
 S

T

LIL
Y 

ST
RIC

HA
RD

 DR

SANDELWOOD ST

GORDON ST

GREEN ST

TERRACE AV

AIRPORT RD

EA
RL

 S
T

MI
SS

IO
N 

ST

FA
TIM

A S
T

ME
AD

OW
 LA

LO
RE

TT
E A

V

LIN
W

OO
D 

AV

CLOVER STWILLIAMS ST

ANN ST

ME
YE

R 
ST15TH ST

BE
EC

HW
OO

D 
LA

KAREN DR

AP
PL

ET
ON

 S
T

DE
PE

RE
 S

T

12TH ST

11TH ST

10TH ST

9TH ST

WITTMAN DR

BA
RB

AR
A C

T
LO

ND
ON

 ST

IDA
 ST

FRANCES ST

PA
GE

S 
PO

IN
T R

D

TA
YC

O 
ST

CA
RV

ER
 LA

MI
LW

AU
KE

E 
ST

MA
RT

IN
 S

T

RA
CI

NE
 S

T

WA
RS

AW
 S

T

AP
PL

ET
ON

 S
T

ST
AT

E S
T

JEFFERSON ST

LINCOLN ST

8TH ST

PL
EA

SA
NT

 LA JO
HN

 ST

AR
TH

UR
 ST

8TH ST

HARDING ST

WA
LB

UR
N 

ST

SC
HO

OL
 C

T

7TH ST

6TH ST
ROOSEVELT ST
MARQUETTE ST

5TH ST

3RD ST

2ND ST

OLD PLANK RD

EL
IZA

BE
TH

 S
T

AL
VA

 ST

SHEPHERD LA

NO
E 

RD

DA
RB

OY
 D

R

CRYSTAL CT

DARBOY DR

AN
DR

EW
 D

R

JESSICA LA

CAMRON DR

GOLDEN CT

RO
SE

BU
D 

LA

GREYSTONE CT VALLEY LA

DAISY CT

PEACEFUL LA

SKIPPERS LA

KR
ISS

Y 
DR

TO
M 

CT
PA

TT
I C

T CLIFF DR
CAMEO CT

CORAL CT

PEARL DR

EM
ER

AL
D 

LA

NO
E 

RD

DAFFODIL DR

HE
DG

ER
OW

 D
R

DAHLIA DR

ZINNIA DR

CORNFLOWER DR

BLAZING STAR DR

MOONFLOWER DR

STRAWFLOWER DR

SN
AP

DR
AG

ON
 LA

MANITOWOC RD

EA
SE

TE
R 

LIL
Y D

R

PE
TU

NI
A C

T

AF
RI

CA
N 

VI
OL

ET
 D

R

BLUE BONNET DR

GERANIUM DR

SWEET WILLIAM DR

NO
E 

RD

EASTER LILY DR

SWEET CLOVER DR

SWEET PEA DR

BASSWOOD LA

HAZELNUT LA

MO
UN

TA
IN

AS
H 

LA

CH
ER

RY
ME

AD
OW

 D
R

JORDAN ST

JO
RD

AN
 S

T

ST
ON

EY
 B

RO
OK

 R
D

SP
EE

L S
CH

OO
L R

D

OA
K L

AW
N 

DR

CH
RI

ST
OP

HE
R 

LA

JO
RD

AN
 S

T

CE
DA

R 
HO

LL
OW

 C
T

JORDAN ST

ELDERBERRY LA

WILSON AV

ROYAL CT

HO
NE

Y L
OU

 C
T

SO
UT

HW
OO

D 
DR

IM
PE

RI
AL

 LA

WO
OD

RO
W

 C
T

FO
RE

ST
VI

EW
 C

T
MA

PL
EC

RE
ST

 D
R

GM
EI

NE
R 

RD

CH
AIN

 D
R

EMBREY CT

SHORT ST

GARDNERS ROW
RED OAK LA

HI
CK

OR
Y L

A

ALCAN DR

UN
IVE

RS
ITY

 D
R

MA
LO

A S
T

LIN
DA AV ACORN CT

OAKRIDGE CT

OAKRIDGE CT

ACORN CT

LA
KE

 PA
RK

 R
D 

(C
.T.

H.
 "L

P"
)

PLANK RD

HA
RM

ON
 S

T

SHEA ST

VERNA ST
VERNA ST

KE
RN

AN
 AV

JO
HA

NN
 D

R

LORNA LA

HEARTHSTONE DR

CA
RP

EN
TE

R 
ST

BO
BT

RA
CE

Y D
R

NETTIE DR

NOLAN DR

PATS DR

BOBBY CT
ALBERT WAY

BARBIE CT

RITA CT

KATHLEEN CT

HAROLD WAY

BE
RK

EN
 S

T

RA
ILR

OA
D 

ST

OFFICE CT

ETHAN DR

DOGWOOD LA

ARBORVITAE LALIL
AC

 R
D

WI
LL

OW
 LA

BL
AC

KO
AK

 S
T

SAWTOOTH CT

DOGWOOD LASIL
VE

R 
BI

RC
H 

DR

BIR
LIN

G 
DR

GARDA CT

SILVER BIRCH CT

BIRLING CT

TRUMPETER SWAN LA

WHISTLING SWAN CT 
WOODLAND HILLS DR

KELLY LAKE DR

GR
EE

N 
VI

EW
 ST

SUGARBRIDGE CT

BITTERSWEET CT

GR
AS

SY
ME

AD
OW

 LN

PR
OV

IN
CE

 TE

PU
RP

LE
 SA

GE
 C

T

TR
AC

EY
 ST

DU
RH

AM
 LAJEFFERY ST

CHELSEA CT

CHLOE CT

CH
ES

TE
RF

IE
LD

 C
T

DEER HAVEN DR

NORTHFIELD CT

DU
CK

-A
-W

AY
 C

T

KIN
GF

IS
HE

R 
CT

WOODLAND RD

ZIR
BE

L D
R

WI
ND

IN
G 

TR
AI

L D
R

GR
OV

E S
T ST

ER
LIN

G 
HE

IG
HT

S 
DR

O'C
ON

NO
R W

AY

GRASSY PLAINS DR

NATURES WAY

BE
RG

AM
ON

T C
T

SU
GA

R 
MA

PL
E W

AY

HEMLOCK LA

MAPLE BLUFF LA

WILD CHERRY CT

SHAGBARK HICKORY LA

EIS
EN

HO
W

ER
 D

RI
VE

SP
RI

NG
 VA

LL
EY

 R
D

LAKEVIEW CT
RAVINE CT

FIR
E 

LA
NE

 10

NO
RT

HS
HO

RE
 R

D

TURNBERRY DR

RO
YC

E C
T

ROYALTROON DR

FIRELANE 5

FIRELANE 4

GLENBROOKE CT

CORNELL CT

HEARTLAND CT

RI
CK

Y 
WA

Y

WE
ND

Y 
WA

Y

THEATER WAYMI
LK

Y 
WA

Y

SAGE WAY

TH
YM

E W
AY

FR
AN

CE
S W

AY

PO
WE

R 
WA

Y

PAIGE WAY

TRANQUIL WAY

HOELZEL WAY

GO
LD

EN
 W

AY

ALDER WAY

WILLOWGLEN WAY

GOSLING WAY

MU
IR

FIE
LD

 W
AY

FIR
ES

TO
NE

 W
AY

CARA WAY

TAMARACK CIR

SCHMALZ CIR

CHERRYBARK CIR

ST
AN

TO
N 

CI
R

MI
ST

FL
OW

ER
 C

IR

NMFR #35

NMFR #36

Appleton Fire 3

Appleton Fire 2

Appleton
Fire 3

Appleton
Fire 2

NMFR #36
EMS Primary

NMFR #36

Grand Chute
Sta 2

Appleton
Fire 3

EMS Primary

Proposed Shared
Response Areas µ

0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.125
Miles

Legend
SharedResp2010

Solid Shaded Areas Represent Normal Fire Dist.
Shared Responder

Appleton Fire 1
Appleton Fire 2
Appleton Fire 3
Appleton Fire 3 EMS
Appleton Fire 4
Appleton Fire 5
Appleton Fire 6
NMFR #36
NMFR #36 EMS



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

February 17, 2022 

To: Katie Van Zeeland, Chair – Safety & Licensing Committee and Common Council 

From: Jeremy Hansen, Fire Chief 

Cc: Ryan Weyers, Deputy Fire Chief 

Re: Agreement for Urban Search and Rescue Emergency Response Services 

 

 
Wisconsin urban search and rescue emergency response capability began in 2009. Wisconsin Emergency Management 
(WEM) and the Department of Military Affairs (DMA) contracts with local agencies to supply team members. A member 
of the team must meet the structural collapse requirements under the National Fire Protection Association standards.  
 
The Appleton Fire Department (AFD), along with 10 other fire departments, participated in the urban search and rescue 
team from its inception until the contract expired in 2019. The 11 participating municipalities sought changes to the 
contract.  These changes included modifications to the reimbursement process, duty disability and workers 
compensation language, and redefining the scope of the team.  The team’s scope expanded from structural collapse 
rescue to an all-hazard urban search and rescue team mirroring the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) 
definition. Each of these changes required legislative action and were successfully implemented when Governor Evers 
signed Act 104 into law in December 2021. The urban search and rescue team is now referred to as Wisconsin Task 
Force 1 (WI-TF1). 
 
The AFD provided 18 members to the urban search and rescue team prior to 2019. The AFD desires to commit 20 
members to WI-TF1. Each member will be credentialed in advanced rope rescue, confined space rescue, trench rescue, 
water rescue, large area search, and structural collapse (approximately 400 hours). All training backfill is reimbursed, 
along with costs associated with deployment. Many of our staff already have the training from their affiliation prior to 
2019.  
 
The AFD strongly desires to, once again, be part of WI-TF1, as State of Wisconsin deployable assets that can be mobilized 
and deployed to aid a community in need. The additional skills will not only be used with the task force but also used 
within the city for all hazard type responses. 

 
If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me at (920) 832-5810. Thank you for your 
consideration. 
 

View our current job openings at governmentjobs.com/careers/appletonwi 

CITY OF APPLETON 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

 

(920) 832-5810 (920) 832-5830 
700 N. Drew Street 

Appleton, WI 54911 
jeremy.hansen@appleton.org 

 

https://www.governmentjobs.com/careers/appletonwi
mailto:jeremy.hansen@appleton.org


 

 

 
 

 1 

  

 

 

   
 

AGREEMENT FOR URBAN  
SEARCH AND RESCUE EMERGENCY  

RESPONSE SERVICES  
 
 

April 1, 2022, through June 30, 2024 
 
 
 Between 
 
 
 STATE OF WISCONSIN 
 DEPARTMENT OF MILITARY AFFAIRS 
 DIVISION OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
 
 And 
 
  
 [municipality] 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

 2 

 
  
This agreement (Agreement) is by and between the State of Wisconsin through the Department of 
Military Affairs (the Department), Division of Emergency Management (the Division) and 
[MUNICIPALITY], Wisconsin (Participating Agency), a Local Agency, regarding the provision of 
personnel by Participating Agency to a statewide urban search and rescue team created pursuant 
to Wis. Stat. § 323.72(1).  The Division and Participating Agency are each a Party and, collectively, 
the Parties.   
 

RECITALS 
 
1.0 To protect life and property against the dangers of emergencies, the Division has, pursuant 

to Wis. Stat. § 323.72(1), established a US&R team that can be deployed to provide 
Services in response to Emergencies.   

  
2.0 The Division desires to enter into this Agreement with Participating Agency for the 

purpose of having Participating Agency supply qualified employees to serve on such a 
team and Participating Agency desires to provide such employees. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, for the mutual promises set forth below, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1.0 Recitals:  The Recitals are incorporated by reference.  
 
2.0 Definitions:  The following definitions are used throughout this Agreement: 
 
2.1 “Advisory Committee” means the WI-TF1 Advisory Committee established by this 

Agreement and consisting of five or seven members appointed by the Board of Directors of 
the Wisconsin State Fire Chiefs’ Association.   

 
2.2 “All-Hazards” means the grouping classification encompassing all conditions, 

environmental or man-made, that have the potential to cause injury, illness or death or 
damage to or loss of equipment, infrastructure services or property or, alternatively, causing 
functional degradation to societal, economic, or environmental aspects. 

 
2.3 “Certification” means an affirmation that a candidate has successfully met the requirements 

of a standard or level of a standard through a valid and reliable assessment as approved by 
the National Board on Fire Service Professional Qualifications.  

 
2.4 “Emergency” or “Emergencies” means an incident(s) or event(s) for which, in the sole 

determination of the Division, Services are needed to supplement state and local efforts 
and capabilities to save lives and protect property and public health and safety or to lessen 
or avert the threat of a catastrophe. 

 
2.5 “Harm” means, at a minimum, human casualties, destruction of property, adverse 

economic impact and/or damage to natural resources. 



 

 

 
 

 3 

 
2.6 “Incident” means any natural, technological, or human-caused occurrence that may cause 

Harm and that may require action.  Incidents may include major disasters, terrorist attacks, 
wildland and urban fires, floods, hazardous materials, explosions, nuclear accidents, 
aircraft accidents, earthquakes, cyberattacks, hurricanes, tornadoes, tropical storms, public 
health and medical emergencies, law enforcement encounters, service calls, mutual aid, 
false alarms, and other occurrences requiring an emergency response.  

  
2.7 “Local Agency,” pursuant to Wis. Stat. §§ 323.70(1)(b) and 323.72(1), means an agency of 

a county, city, village, or town, including a municipal police or fire department, a municipal 
health organization, a county office of emergency management, a county sheriff, an 
emergency medical service, a local emergency response team, or a public works 
department.  

 
2.8 “REACT Center” means the Regional Emergency All-Climate Training Center, which is a 

training facility owned and operated by the State of Wisconsin, Department of Military 
Affairs and operated by the Division.   

 
2.9 “Services” means US&R emergency response services as described in Wis. Stat. § 

323.72(1) and any subsequent amendments to that statute, which include services 
involving search, rescue and recovery in the technical rescue disciplines including structural 
collapse, rope rescue, vehicle extrication, machinery extrication, confined space, trench, 
excavation, and water operations in an US&R environment.  

 
2.10  “US&R” means urban search and rescue, which involves the location, rescue (extrication), 

and initial medical stabilization of victims trapped in confined spaces. Structural collapse is 
most often the cause of victims being trapped, but victims may also be trapped in 
transportation accidents, mines and collapsed trenches. US&R is considered an all-hazards 
discipline, as it may be needed for a variety of emergencies or disasters, including 
earthquakes, hurricanes, typhoons, storms and tornadoes, floods, dam failures, 
technological accidents, terrorist activities, and hazardous materials releases.  

 
2.11 “WI-TF1” means the all-hazards US&R team authorized by Wis. Stat. § 323.72(1) made 

up of firefighters, engineers, medical professionals, canine handlers,  incident managers, 
and others that is a core component of a Search and Rescue Essential Support Function 
mission, including a Type 1 US&R task force, Type 3 US&R task force or any 
component thereof, as designated by the Federal Emergency Management Agency 
National Incident Management System Search and Rescue resource typing system.  
See Wis. Stat. § 323.72(7). 

 
3.0 Participating Agency Obligations:   
 
3.1. Recognizing that many of Participating Agency’s employees who are potential candidates 

for appointment to WI-TF1 may not have all required training as of the date this Agreement 
begins, the Parties agree to proceed as follows within 90 days after the Agreement begins. 
  

 



 

 

 
 

 4 

 3.1.1 After individuals selected for training have successfully completed the training, 
Participating Agency shall provide, on a form prescribed by the Division, a list of 
trained individuals that it deems to be good candidates for appointment to WI-TF1 
but for the need for up-to-date training.  The Division shall select individuals from list 
for initial and/or refresher training required by Section 4.0 of this Agreement.   

 
3.2 Once the employees Participating Agency proposed to be appointed to WI-TF1 have 

successfully completed the required training, Participating Agency shall provide to the 
Division for Division approval a list on a form prescribed by the Division of one or more 
employees fully trained as set forth in Section 4.0 of this Agreement who Participating 
Agency proposes be a WI-TF1 member for Division approval, along with a description of 
the anticipated role the employee would have on WI-TF1 (e.g., Medical Specialist, 
Structural Collapse Search Technician, etc.).  Only those employees who Participating 
Agency can demonstrate to the Division’s satisfaction meet the following criteria at the time 
Participating Agency submits the list may be included on the list:   

 
 3.2.1 Possess all required training and certifications necessary to perform Services in the 

specific role the employee would fill on WI-TF1, based on the training, competency, 
and job performance requirement standards for an US&R task force issued by the 
National Fire Protection Association (NFPA), the most current version of the urban 
search and rescue standards issued by the Emergency Management Accreditation 
program, and any training standards required by law, rule or regulation. 

 
 3.2.2 Are employees in good standing. 
 
 3.2.3 Are not probationary employees. 
 
 3.2.4 Have been subjected to a background check by Participating Agency or the 

Division. 
 
 3.2.5 Meet any medical or fitness standards agreed upon by the WI-TF1 Advisory 

Committee and the Division.   
 
 3.2.6 Have been instructed on and, as required by the State of Wisconsin, are able to 

meet the then-current COVID-19 standards set by the State of Wisconsin, for its 
employees, including vaccination, testing, and mask-wearing requirements.  

 
3.3 The Division, in consultation with the Advisory Committee established pursuant to Section 

3.7 below, may appoint one or more of the employees on the list to the WI-TF1.  Inclusion 
on the list or proposed WI-TF1 members does not guarantee appointment.   

 
3.4 Upon receipt of an emergency response request by the Division pursuant to the Standard 

Operating Procedures, Participating Agency shall direct employees who have been 
appointed to WI-TF1 and designated for mobilization to travel to the REACT Center or such 
other location as designated by the Division to be deployed to provide Services in response 
to an Emergency. 

 



 

 

 
 

 5 

3.5 Participating Agency may not self-deploy WI-TF1 members.  This prohibition does not 
prevent Participating Agency from deploying its employees to respond to emergencies 
where urban search and rescue services are needed or responding with urban search and 
rescue vehicles, equipment and supplies under local authority, mutual aid agreements or 
other contracts entered into under local authority.  Participating Agency recognizes that it is 
not entitled to reimbursement by the Division for such response costs and that the Division 
will not supply equipment or vehicles for such responses.   

 
3.6 Participating Agency shall comply with all requirements of any grants which provide funding 

for WI-TF1.  
 
3.7 An Advisory Committee has been established, the duties of which will be defined by the WI-

TF1 Standard Operating Procedures. 
 
3.8 The Division, in consultation with the Advisory Committee, has the authority to immediately 

suspend or terminate a WI-TF1 member from participation on the task force.    
 
4.0 Required Training and Exercises:   
 
4.1 All required training and exercises must be done at the REACT Center or at a location pre-

approved in writing by the Division in consultation with the Advisory Committee.  Refresher 
training shall be a minimum of eighteen (18) hours per WI-TF1 member per year.  
Additional specialty training may be made available at REACT upon written pre-approval by 
the Division.  Participation in required training and exercises will be in accordance with the 
WI-TF1 Attendance Policy approved by the Division in consultation with the Advisory 
Committee.   

 
4.2 Non-Duty Status:  All individuals attending training or exercises at the REACT Center shall 

be in a non-duty status with Participating Agency. 
 
4.3 Training and Exercise Schedule:  To facilitate planning for required training and exercises, 

the REACT Center shall post the relevant schedule a minimum of twelve months in 
advance of the start date of the training, except that specialized training may be made 
available with less advance notice.  Changes may be made to the training and exercise 
schedule for unforeseen circumstances by notification of Participating Agencies.  The 
Division will provide as much advanced notice of any changes as possible.     

 
5.0 Response Procedures and Limitations:   
 
5.1 Participating Agency recognizes that its obligations under this Agreement are paramount to 

the State of Wisconsin.  Participating Agency agrees that, if local fire response obligations 
in Participating Agency’s own jurisdiction would limit necessary resources necessary to 
provide Services in response to an Emergency or make such resources unavailable, 
Participating Agency will seek aid from local jurisdictions to assist in local fire response 
obligations in Participating Agency’s own jurisdiction to ensure availability of resources for 
the performance of Services.  
 



 

 

 
 

 6 

5.2 Participating Agency and the Division agree that WI-TF1 or components of it may be used 
for any Emergency for which WI-TF1 members are trained and qualified.  
 

5.3 Participating Agency’s obligation to provide services under this Agreement shall arise, with 
respect to specific Emergency response actions, upon receipt of an Emergency response 
request pursuant to the Standard Operating Procedures.  See Section 7 below.   

 
6.0 Right of Refusal:   
  
 If, on occasion, a response under this Agreement would temporarily place a verifiable 

undue burden on the Participating Agency because Participating Agency's resources are 
otherwise inadequate or unavailable and mutual aid is unavailable, then if notice has been 
provided to the Division, the Participating Agency may decline a request for personnel to 
staff WI-TF1 and/or for response equipment.   

  
7.0 Standard Operating Procedures:   
 
 Participating Agency and Division agree that WI-TF1 operations will be conducted in 

accordance with Standard Operating Procedures and a "Call-Out Procedure" that will be 
mutually approved by the Parties and other Local Agencies providing WI-TF1 members.  
Participating Agency agrees that it shall ensure that any of its employees appointed to WI-
TF1 comply with these procedures.     

 
8.0 Reimbursement of Costs  
 
 There are three types of Participating Agency costs that shall be reimbursed under this 

Agreement: (1) costs related to providing requested Services and (2) required training 
and exercise costs; and (3) costs related to an increase in duty-disability benefit 
premiums due to an injury a WI-TF1 member sustained while performing under this 
Agreement.  In seeking reimbursement for those costs, Participating Agency shall 
comply with all Division-approved procedures and any relevant administrative rules.  

 
9.0 Reimbursement for Response Costs:    
 
9.1 Pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 323.72(2), the Division shall reimburse Participating Agency for 

costs incurred by Participating Agency in responding to an Emergency and providing 
Services at the request of the Division within 60 days after receiving a complete 
application for reimbursement on a form prescribed by the Division but only if (1) the 
Division determines that the provision of Services was necessary; and (2) Participating 
Agency applies for reimbursement within 45 days after the conclusion of that deployment 
of WI-TF1 for that particular Emergency. 

 
9.2 Recoverable costs include but are not limited to the use of vehicles and apparatus, 

personnel expenses, backfill expenses and emergency expenses.  The amount of 
reimbursement for the enumerated costs are as follows:  

 
 9.2.1 Reimbursement for use of Vehicle(s) and Apparatus:  Participating Agency shall be 



 

 

 
 

 7 

reimbursed for the approved use of its vehicles and equipment in providing 
Services at FEMA-established rates.  

 
 9.2.2 Personnel Expenses:  Reasonable personnel expenses relating to WI-TF1 

members deployed at the direction of the Division to provide Services which are 
reimbursable at $55.00 per hour per deployed employee.  During a deployment, this 
shall be calculated as portal to portal.  

 
 9.2.3 Backfill expenses:  Participating Agency’s reasonable personnel expenses incurred 

to cover the duties of employees deployed to provide Services as part of WI-TF1 
are reimbursable at the Participating Agency’s actual cost. 

 
 9.2.4 Emergency Expenses:  Participating Agency's necessary and reasonable 

emergency expenses related to deploying employees to provide Services, which 
expenses must be based on actual expenditures and fully documented by the 
Participating Agency. The Division reserves the right to deny any reimbursement of 
Participating Agency expenditures it deems to be unreasonable or unjustifiable.   

 
9.3 Participating Agency agrees to make reasonable and good faith efforts to minimize its costs 

related to providing personnel and equipment to perform Services in response to an 
Emergency.   

 
10.0 Payment for Training and Exercise Costs:   
 
10.1 In any given fiscal year, Participating Agency shall be paid for any training and participation 

in exercises of employees who the Division has appointed to WI-TF1 that is pre-authorized 
in writing by the Division at a rate of $55 per hour per appointed employee consistent with 
the Attendance Policy.  

 
10.2 Such payment will be made on a quarterly basis as determined by reference to the state’s 

fiscal year.  For example, the first quarter will be from July 1 through September 30 and so 
forth.   

 
10.3 The Division will not pay for Participating Agency’s personnel backfill expenses to cover 

team members who are traveling to and from or participating in training or exercises.  
 
11.0 Reimbursement of Increased Duty Disability Costs:   
 
11.1 The Division shall reimburse Participating Agency for costs incurred by Participating 

Agency for any increase in contributions for duty disability premiums under Wis. Stat. § 
40.05(2)(aw) for its employees who are WI-TF1 members and who receive duty disability 
benefits under Wis. Stat. § 40.65 because of an injury that occurred while performing duties 
as a member of WI-TF1. 

 
11.2 Application for reimbursement under this Section shall be made after the close of the 

State’s fiscal year and shall seek reimbursement for any cost due to increased premiums 
referred to above imposed in the prior fiscal year.   



 

 

 
 

 8 

 
11.3 Payment under this Section shall be made within 60 days of receipt of documentation of the 

following: 
 
 11.3.1 That the WI-TF1 member was injured while performing WI-TF1 duties after being 

deployed pursuant to a Division order. 
 
 11.3.2 That the member is receiving duty disability benefits because of such injury. 
 
 11.3.3 The amount of increase in premium for duty disability benefits to the Participating 

Agency that can be directly attributed to the receipt of such benefits by the member 
during the preceding fiscal year. 

 
12.0  Employer-Employee Relationship and Obligations Maintained:   
  
 Except as provided in this Agreement, Participating Agency employees who are WI-TF1 

members remain employees of Participating Agency and are not employees of the State of 
Wisconsin.  This means, in part, that Participating Agency’s employees are not entitled to 
Division contribution for any Public Employees Retirement Withholding System benefit(s), 
nor to any other benefits or any wage provided by the State of Wisconsin to its employees.  
Participating Agency shall be responsible for payment/withholding of any applicable federal, 
Social Security and State taxes from any wages paid or benefits provided to its employees. 

 
13.0  Worker's Compensation:   
 
 A WI-TF1 member acting under this Agreement is an employee of the state for purposes of 

worker's compensation pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 323.72(4).   
 
14.0 Dual Payment:   
 
 Participating Agency shall not be compensated for work performed under this Agreement 

both by the Division and any other state agency or person(s) responsible for causing an 
Emergency except as approved and authorized under this Agreement. 

 
15.0  Reasonable Efforts: 
 

Participating Agency shall make reasonable and good-faith efforts to minimize its costs 
related to its employees’ participation in WI-TF1 training, exercise, and Emergency 
response Services.  

 
16.0 Liability and Indemnity 
  
16.1 Scope:   
  
 During operations authorized by this Agreement, WI-TF1 members supplied by 

Participating Agency are agents of the state for purposes of Wis. Stat. § 895.46(1).  For the 
purposes of this Section, operations means activities, including travel, directly related to 



 

 

 
 

 9 

providing Services.  Operations also include training activities provided under this 
Agreement to WI-TF1 members but does not include travel to and from any training 
required or permitted under this Agreement. 

 
16.2 Civil liability exemption; regional emergency response teams and their sponsoring 

agencies:   
 
 Pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 895.483(4), Participating Agency and its employees who are 

members of WI-TF1 are immune from civil liability for acts or omissions related to 
carrying out the Services.   

 
16.3 Participating Agency Indemnification of State:   
 
 When acting as other than an agent of the State of Wisconsin under this Agreement, and 

when using the State's or Division's vehicles or equipment, Participating Agency shall 
indemnify, defend and hold harmless the State, which includes the Department, the 
Division and all state agencies, and its officers, officials, agents, employees, and members 
from all claims, suits or actions of any nature, including actions for attorneys’ fees, arising 
out of the activities or omissions of Participating Agency, its officers, officials, 
subcontractors, agents or employees. 

 
17.0 Insurance Obligations:   
 
17.1 Insurance obligations are set forth in the Standard Terms and Conditions attached as 

Exhibit A.  Prior to commencement of this Agreement, Participating Agency must either 
provide to the Division a certificate of insurance or, if Participating Agency is self-insured or 
uninsured, a certificate of protection in lieu of insurance certifying that Participating Agency 
is protected by a self-funded liability and property program or alternative funding source(s). 
Such certification must be provided on an annual basis.   

 
17.2 Participating Agency agrees that it shall not cancel or make a material change to the 

insurance required by this Agreement without 30 days written notice to the Division. 
 
18.0  Standard Terms and Conditions:  The Wisconsin Standard Terms and Conditions are 

attached as Exhibit A and are incorporated into this Agreement by reference.  
 
19.0 Miscellaneous  
 
19.1 Disclosure of Independence and Relationship:  Participating Agency certifies that no 

relationship exists between it, the State of Wisconsin or the Division that interferes with fair 
competition or is a conflict of interest, and no relationship exists between the team and 
another person or organization that constitutes a conflict of interest with respect to a state 
contract. The Department of Administration may waive this provision, in writing, if those 
activities of the Participating Agency will not be averse to the interest of the State. 

 
 Participating Agency agrees as part of this Agreement that, during performance of the 

terms of this Agreement, they will neither provide contractual services nor enter into any 



 

 

 
 

 10 

agreement to provide services to a person or entity that is regulated or funded by the 
Department or has interests that are adverse to the Department.  The Department of 
Administration may waive this provision, in writing, if those activities of the Participating 
Agency will not be adverse to the interests of the state. 

 
19.2 Dual Employment:  Wis. Stat. § 16.417 prohibits an individual who is a state employee or 

who is retained as a consultant full-time by a state agency from being retained as a 
consultant by the same or another agency where the individual receives more than $5,000 
as compensation. This prohibition applies only to individuals and does not include 
corporations or partnerships.  

  
19.3 Employment:  Participating Agency will not engage the service of any person or persons 

now employed by the state, including any department, commission, or board thereof, to 
provide services relating to this Agreement without the written consent of the employer of 
such person or persons and the Department and Division. 

 
19.4 Conflict of interest:  Private and non-profit corporations are bound by Wis. Stat. §§ 

180.0831 and 181.225 regarding conflicts of interest by directors in the conduct of state 
contracts.  

 
19.5 Recordkeeping and Record Retention:  The Participating Agency shall establish and 

maintain adequate records of all expenditures incurred under the Agreement. All records 
must be kept in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and be 
consistent with federal and state laws and local ordinances. The Division, the federal 
government, and their duly authorized representatives shall have the right to audit, review, 
examine, copy, and transcribe any pertinent records or documents relating to any contract 
resulting from this Agreement held by Participating Agency. The Participating Agency shall 
retain all documents applicable to the Agreement for a period of not less than three (3) 
years after the final payment is made or longer where required by law. 

 
19.6 Indemnification Regarding Employment Disputes:  Participating Agency shall indemnify, 

defend, and hold harmless the State of Wisconsin, including the Division and the 
Department, with respect any disputes Participating Agency may have with its employees.  
Such disputes include but are not limited to charges of discrimination, harassment, 
improper wage payment, and discharge without just cause.  

 
19.7  Term, Termination and Review of Agreement:   
 

19.7.1 Term: This Agreement shall begin on April 1, 2022, and terminate on June 30, 
2024, unless terminated earlier pursuant to Section 19.7.2. 

  
 19.7.2 Termination:   
 

 19.7.2.1 The Division and/or Participating Agency may terminate this 
Agreement at any time upon one hundred twenty (120) days written 
notice to the other Party.  

 



 

 

 
 

 11 

  19.7.2.2 The Division may also terminate this Agreement at will effective 
upon delivery of written notice to the Participating Agency under any 
of the following conditions: 

 
    19.7.2.2.1 Funding from federal, state, or other sources is not 

obtained and/or continued at levels sufficient to allow 
for training.   

 
    19.7.2.2.2 Federal or state laws, rules, regulations, or 

guidelines are modified, changed, or interpreted in 
such a way that the services are no longer allowable 
or appropriate for purchase under this Agreement or 
are no longer eligible for the funding proposed for 
payments by this Agreement. 

 
    19.7.2.2.3 Any license or certification required by law or 

regulation to be held by the Participating Agency to 
provide the services required by this Agreement is for 
any reason denied, revoked, lapses, or not renewed. 

 
  19.7.2.3 Any termination of the Agreement shall be without prejudice to any 

obligations or liabilities of either party already accrued prior to such 
termination.  Upon termination, the Division’s liability under Sections 
8-11 will be limited to events occurring during the term of this 
Agreement. 

 
 19.7.3 Review:  The Agreement shall be reviewed by the Parties and other participating 

agencies no later than six (6) months prior to the expiration of this Agreement.  
 
19.8 Entire Agreement:  The contents of the Agreement including its Exhibits shall constitute the 

entire agreement between the Parties relating to the subject matter of the Agreement.  The 
Agreement supersedes any and all prior agreements, whether expressed orally or in 
writing, relating to the subject matter of the Agreement. 

 
19.9 Applicable Law:  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Wisconsin. 

The Participating Agency and State shall at all times comply with and observe all federal 
and state laws and regulations, the federal and state constitutions, and local ordinances 
and regulations in effect during the period of this Agreement and which may in any manner 
affect its performance of its obligations under this Agreement, including the provision of 
Services.  

 
19.10 Assignment:  No right or duty of the Participating Agency under this Agreement, whole or in 

part, may be assigned or delegated without the prior written consent of the State of 
Wisconsin. 

 
19.11 Successors in Interest:  The provisions of the Agreement shall be binding upon and shall 

inure to the benefit of the parties to the Agreement and their respective successors and 



 

 

 
 

 12 

permitted assigns. 
 
19.12  Force Majeure:  Neither party to this Agreement shall be held responsible for delay or 

default caused by fire, riots, acts of God and/or war or for other reasons beyond that Party's 
reasonable control.   

  
19.13 Notifications:  Participating Agency shall immediately report by telephone and in writing any 

demand, request, or occurrence that reasonably may give rise to a claim against the State, 
its officers, Divisions, agents, employees, and members.  Such reports shall be directed to: 

 
    ATTN: Administrator 
    Division of Emergency Management 
    DMA Wisconsin 
    PO Box 7865 
    Madison, WI  53707-7865 
    Telephone #: (608) 242-3232 
    FAX #: (608) 242-3247 
 
 Copies of such written reports shall also be sent to: 
 
    ATTN: Office of the Department of Military Affairs General Counsel 
    Wisconsin Department of Military Affairs 
    2400 Wright Street 
    Madison, WI  53704 
 
19.14 Severability:  If any provision of this Agreement is declared by a court to be illegal or in 

conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected. 
The rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the 
Agreement did not contain the particular provision held to be invalid. 

 
19.15 Amendments:  The terms of this Agreement shall not be waived, altered, modified, 

supplemented, or amended in any manner whatsoever without prior written approval of 
Division and Participating Agency. 

 
19.16 Approval Authority:  Participating Agency's representative(s) certify by their signature herein 

that he or she has the necessary and lawful authority to enter into contracts and 
agreements on behalf of Participating Agency.   

 
 
19.17 No Waiver:  No failure to exercise, and no delay in exercising, any right, power or remedy, 

including payment, hereunder, on the part of the Division, state, or Participating Agency 
shall operate as a waiver of the same, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right, 
power or remedy preclude any other or further exercise of the same or the exercise of any 
other right, power or remedy created by the Agreement. No express waiver shall affect any 
event or default other than the event or default specified in such waiver, and any such 
waiver, to be effective, must be in writing and shall be operative only for the time and to the 
extent expressly provided in the written waiver.  A waiver of any covenant, term or condition 



 

 

 
 

 13 

contained herein shall not be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same 
covenant, term or condition. 

 
19.18 Construction of Agreement:  This Agreement is intended to be solely between the Parties. 

No part of the Agreement shall be construed to add, supplement, amend, abridge, or repeal 
existing rights, benefits or privileges of any third party or parties, including but not limited to 
employees of either of the Parties.  

 
 The Division and Participating Agency make no representations to third parties with regard 

to the ultimate outcome of the provision of Services.   
 
Approving Signatures: 
 

ON BEHALF OF THE WISCONSIN EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 
 
 
 
 Dated this          day of _____________, 2022 
 
 
 
 __________________________________________                                                          
 Greg Engle, Acting Division Administrator 
  



 

 

 
 

 14 

[SIGNATURE PAGE]



 

 

 
 

 15 

EXHIBIT A 
 
EXHIBIT A TO AGREEMENT FOR URBAN SEARCH AND RESCUE EMERGENCY RESPONSE SERVICES  
AGREEMENT (the Agreement) 
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN STANDARD  
TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
ANTITRUST ASSIGNMENT: The Participating Agency and the State of Wisconsin recognize that in actual economic practice, overcharges 
resulting from antitrust violations are in fact usually borne by the State of Wisconsin (purchaser).  Therefore, the Participating Agency 
hereby assigns to the State of Wisconsin any and all claims for such overcharges as to goods, materials or services purchased in 
connection with this Agreement. 
 
APPLICABLE LAW AND COMPLIANCE: This Agreement shall be governed under the laws of the State of Wisconsin.  The Participating 
Agency shall at all times comply with and observe all federal and state laws, local laws, ordinances, and regulations which are in effect 
during the period of this Agreement and which in any manner affect the work or its conduct.  The State of Wisconsin reserves the right to 
cancel this Agreement if the Participating Agency fails to follow the requirements of s. 77.66, Wis. Stats. and related statutes regarding 
certification for collection of sales and use tax.  The State of Wisconsin also reserves the right to cancel this Agreement with any federally 
debarred Participating Agency or a Participating Agency that is presently identified on the list of parties excluded from federal procurement 
and non-procurement Agreements. 
 
CANCELLATION: The State of Wisconsin reserves the right to cancel any Agreement in whole or in part without penalty due to 
nonappropriation, unavailability or insufficiency of funds or for failure of the Participating Agency to comply with terms, conditions, and 
specifications of this Agreement. 
 
WORK CENTER CRITERIA:  A work center must be certified under s.16.752, Wis. Stats., and must ensure that when engaged in the 
production of materials, supplies or equipment or the performance of contractual services, not less than seventy-five percent (75%) of the 
total hours of direct labor are performed by severely handicapped. 
 
INSURANCE RESPONSIBILITY: The Participating Agency performing services for the State of Wisconsin shall: 
 
 Maintain worker's compensation insurance as required by Wisconsin Statutes, for all employees engaged in the work. 
 
 Maintain commercial liability, bodily injury and property damage insurance against any claim(s) which might occur in carrying out this 

agreement/Agreement.  Minimum coverage shall be one million ($1,000,000) liability for bodily injury and property damage including 
products liability and completed operations.  Provide motor vehicle insurance for all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles that are 
used in carrying out this Agreement.  Minimum coverage shall be one million ($1,000,000) per occurrence combined single limit for 
automobile liability and property damage. 

 
 The state reserves the right to require higher or lower limits where warranted. 
 
NONDISCRIMINATION / AFFIRMATIVE ACTION:  In connection with the performance of work under this Agreement, the Participating 
Agency agrees not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of age, race, religion, color, handicap, sex, 
physical condition, developmental disability as defined in s.51.01(5), Wis. Stats., sexual orientation as defined in s.111.32(13m), Wis. Stats., 
or national origin.  This provision shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment 
or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship.  Except with respect to sexual orientation, the Participating Agency further agrees to take affirmative action to ensure equal 
employment opportunities. 
 
Contracts estimated to be over fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) require the submission of a written affirmative action plan by the 
Participating Agency.  An exemption occurs from this requirement if the Participating Agency has a workforce of less than fifty (50) 
employees.  Within fifteen (15) working days after the Agreement is awarded, the Participating Agency must submit the plan to the 
contracting state agency for approval.  Instructions on preparing the plan and technical assistance regarding this clause are available from 
the contracting state agency. 
 
The Participating Agency agrees to post in conspicuous places, available for employees and applicants for employment, a notice to be 
provided by the contracting state agency that sets forth the provisions of the State of Wisconsin's nondiscrimination law. 
 
Failure to comply with the conditions of this clause may result in the Participating Agency's becoming declared an "ineligible" Participating 
Agency, termination of the Agreement, or withholding of payment. 
 



 

 

 
 

 16 

Pursuant to 2019 Wisconsin Executive Order 1, Participating Agency agrees it will hire only on the basis of merit and will not discriminate 
against any persons performing a contract, subcontract or grant because of military or veteran status, gender identity or expression, marital 
or familial status, genetic information or political affiliation. 
 
Pursuant to s. 16.75(10p), Wis. Stats., Participating Agency agrees it is not, and will not for the duration of the Agreement, engage in a 
prohibited boycott of the State of Israel as defined in s. 20.931(1)(b). State agencies and authorities may not execute a contract and reserve 
the right to terminate an existing contract with a company that is not compliant with this provision. This provision applies to contracts valued 
$100,000 or over. 
 
PUBLIC RECORDS.  Upon receipt of notice from the State of Wisconsin of a public records request for records produced or collected under 
this Agreement, the Participating Agency shall provide the requested records to the contracting agency in order to ensure compliance with 
s. 19.36(3), Wis. Stats.  Participating Agency, following final payment under this Agreement, shall retain all records produced or collected 
under this Agreement for six (6) years.  Participating Agency is also considered a contractor for the purposes of Wis. Stat. § 19.36(3) and 
must comply with its provisions. 
 
TAXES: The State of Wisconsin, including all its agencies, is required to pay the Wisconsin excise or occupation tax on its purchase of 
beer, liquor, wine, cigarettes, tobacco products, motor vehicle fuel and general aviation fuel.  However, it is exempt from payment of 
Wisconsin sales or use tax on its purchases.  The State of Wisconsin may be subject to other states' taxes on its purchases in that state 
depending on the laws of that state. 
 
VENDOR TAX DELINQUENCY: Vendors who have a delinquent Wisconsin tax liability may have their payments offset by the State of 
Wisconsin. 
 



Date of enactment:  December 3, 2021

2021 Senate Bill 374 Date of publication*:  December 4, 2021

2021  WISCONSIN  ACT  104

AN ACT to repeal 323.70 (7), 323.72 (3) (a) and 323.72 (5); to consolidate, renumber and amend 323.72 (3) (intro.)

and (b); to amend 20.465 (3) (dr), 20.465 (3) (dv), 20.465 (3) (jt), 323.70 (3), 323.70 (4) (intro.), 323.71 (3), 323.71

(4) (b), 323.72 (title), 323.72 (1), 323.72 (2), 323.72 (4) and 895.483 (4); and to create 40.05 (2) (aw), 40.05 (2) (ax),

40.06 (8), 40.06 (9), 323.70 (3m), 323.72 (2m), 323.72 (6) and 323.72 (7) of the statutes; relating to: a statewide

urban search and rescue task force, regional emergency response teams, and making an appropriation.

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in

senate and assembly, do enact as follows:

SECTION 2.  20.465 (3) (dr) of the statutes is amended

to read:

20.465 (3) (dr)  Emergency response supplement.  As

a continuing appropriation, the amounts in the schedule

to be used for response costs of a regional emergency

response team that are not reimbursed from the appropri-

ation under s. 323.70 (3) or (4) 20.465 (3) (jt) and for

response costs of a local agency that are not reimbursed

under s. 323.71 (4).

SECTION 3m.  20.465 (3) (dv) of the statutes, as cre-

ated by 2021 Wisconsin Act 58, is amended to read:

20.465 (3) (dv)  Urban search and rescue task force.

As a continuing appropriation, the amounts in the sched-

ule for training, equipment, and administrative costs for

an urban search and rescue task force under s. 323.72.

SECTION 5.  20.465 (3) (jt) of the statutes is amended

to read:

20.465 (3) (jt)  Regional emergency response reim-

bursement.  All moneys received by the division of emer-

gency management under s. 323.70 (4) for reimburse-

ment of regional emergency response teams under s.

323.70 (3), and for reimbursement to a local agency for

any increase in contributions for duty disability premi-

ums under s. 40.05 (2) (ax) for employees who receive

duty disability benefits under s. 40.65 because of an

injury incurred while performing duties as a member of

a regional emergency response team under a contract

under s. 323.70 (2).  All moneys received under s. 323.70

(4) as reimbursement for expenses incurred for a regional

emergency response team response shall be credited to

this appropriation account.

SECTION 6.  40.05 (2) (aw) of the statutes is created

to read:

40.05 (2) (aw)  For purposes of this subsection, the

participating employer of an employee subject to s. 40.65

who is on a deployment, training, or readiness exercise as

the member of an urban search and rescue task force

under a contract under s. 323.72 (1) is the local agency,

and the local agency shall contribute any additional per-

centage or percentages related to the deployment, train-

ing, or readiness exercises under a contract under s.

323.72 (1) as calculated by the actuary under s. 40.03 (5)

(c).  A local agency may seek reimbursement from the

department of military affairs under s. 323.72 (2m).

SECTION 7.  40.05 (2) (ax) of the statutes is created to

read:

*  Section 991.11,  WISCONSIN STATUTES:   Effective date of acts.  “Every act and every portion of an act enacted by the legislature over the governor’s
partial veto which does not expressly prescribe the time when it takes effect shall take effect on the day after its date of publication.”



 − 2 −2021 Wisconsin Act 104  2021 Senate Bill 374

40.05 (2) (ax)  For purposes of this subsection, the

participating employer of an employee subject to s. 40.65

who is responding to an emergency involving a level A

release, or a potential level A release as a member of a

regional emergency response team under a contract

under s. 323.70 (2) is the local agency, and the local

agency shall contribute any additional percentage or per-

centages related to response to an emergency involving

a level A release, or a potential level A release under a

contract under s. 323.70 (2) as calculated by the actuary

under s. 40.03 (5) (c).  A local agency may seek reim-

bursement from the department of military affairs under

s. 323.70 (3m).

SECTION 8.  40.06 (8) of the statutes is created to read:

40.06 (8)  For periods during which a protective occu-

pation participant who is a participating employee is on

a deployment, training, or readiness exercise with an

urban search and rescue task force under a contract under

s. 323.72 (1), all of the following shall apply:

(a)  The employer remits required contributions to the

department under s. 40.05 (1) (a) and (2) (a).

(b)  The employer reports to the department service

and earnings that are at least the same rate the employee

would have received if the employee had not been on the

deployment, training, or readiness exercise.

SECTION 9.  40.06 (9) of the statutes is created to read:

40.06 (9)  For periods during which a protective occu-

pation participant who is a participating employee is

responding to an emergency involving a level A release,

or a potential level A release as a member of a regional

emergency response team under a contract under s.

323.70 (2), all of the following shall apply:

(a)  The employer remits required contributions to the

department under s. 40.05 (1) (a) and (2) (a).

(b)  The employer reports to the department service

and earnings that are at least the same rate the employee

would have received if the employee had not been

responding to an emergency involving a level A release

or potential level A release.

SECTION 10.  323.70 (3) of the statutes is amended to

read:

323.70 (3)  The From the appropriations under s.

20.465 (3) (dr) and (jt), the division shall reimburse a

regional emergency response team local agency con-

tracted under sub. (2) for costs incurred by the team in

responding to an emergency involving a level A release,

or a potential level A release, if the team followed the pro-

cedures in the rules promulgated under sub. (7) (b) to

determine if division determines that an emergency

requiring  a  the response existed.  Reimbursement under

this subsection is limited to amounts collected under sub.

(4) and the amounts appropriated under s. 20.465 (3) (dr).

Reimbursement is available under s. 20.465 (3) (dr) only

if the regional emergency response team has made a good

faith effort to identify the person responsible under sub.

(4) and that person cannot be identified, or, if that person

is identified, the team has received reimbursement from

that person to the extent that the person is financially able

or has determined that the person does not have adequate

money or other resources to reimburse the regional emer-

gency response team shall be issued to the local agency

within 60 days after receiving a complete application for

reimbursement on a form prescribed by the division if the

agency applies for reimbursement within 45 days after

the conclusion of the deployment of the regional emer-

gency response team.

SECTION 11.  323.70 (3m) of the statutes is created to

read:

323.70 (3m)  From the appropriation under s. 20.465

(3) (jt), the division shall reimburse a local agency under

sub. (1) for costs incurred by the local agency for any

increase in contributions for duty disability premiums

under s. 40.05 (2) (ax) for employees who receive duty

disability benefits under s. 40.65 because of an injury

incurred while performing duties as a member of regional

emergency response team under sub. (2).

SECTION 12.  323.70 (4) (intro.) of the statutes is

amended to read:

323.70 (4) (intro.)  A person shall reimburse the divi-

sion for costs incurred by a regional emergency response

team in responding to an emergency involving a level A

release or a potential level A release if the team followed

the procedures established under sub. (7) (b) to determine

if an emergency requiring the team’s response existed

and if any of the following conditions applies:

SECTION 13.  323.70 (7) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 14.  323.71 (3) of the statutes is amended to

read:

323.71 (3)  The From the appropriation under s.

20.465 (3) (dr), the division shall reimburse a local emer-

gency response team for costs incurred by the team in

responding to an emergency involving a hazardous sub-

stance release, or potential release, if the team followed

the procedures in the rules promulgated under s. 323.70

(7) (c) to determine if division determines that an emer-

gency requiring the team’s response existed.  Reimburse-

ment under this subsection is limited to the amount

appropriated under s. 20.465 (3) (dr).  Reimbursement is

available under s. 20.465 (3) (dr) only if the local emer-

gency response team has made a good faith effort to iden-

tify the person responsible under sub. (4) and that person

cannot be identified, or, if that person is identified, the

team has received reimbursement from that person to the

extent that the person is financially able or has deter-

mined that the person does not have adequate money or

other resources to reimburse the local emergency

response team.  Reimbursement under this subsection

shall be issued to the local agency within 60 days after

receiving a complete application for reimbursement on a

form prescribed by the division if the agency applies for

reimbursement within 45 days after the conclusion of the

deployment of the local emergency response team.



 − 3 − 2021 Wisconsin Act 104 2021 Senate Bill 374

SECTION 15.  323.71 (4) (b) of the statutes is amended

to read:

323.71 (4) (b)  A local emergency response team may

receive reimbursement under par. (a) only if the team fol-

lowed the procedures established under s. 323.70 (7) (c)

to determine if division determines that an emergency

requiring the team’s response existed.

SECTION 16.  323.72 (title) of the statutes is amended

to read:

323.72  (title)  Structural collapse Urban search

and rescue emergency response.

SECTION 17.  323.72 (1) of the statutes is amended to

read:

323.72 (1)   A regional structural collapse team An

urban search and rescue task force designated by the divi-

sion shall assist in the at the direction of the division in

an emergency response to a structural collapse incident

in a region of this state designated by the division involv-

ing search, rescue, and recovery in the technical rescue

disciplines to include structural collapse, rope rescue,

vehicle extrication, machinery extrication, confined

space, trench, excavation, and water operations in an

urban search and rescue environment.  Whenever  a

regional structural collapse team an urban search and res-

cue task force assists in an emergency response under this

subsection, it the division shall determine under the rules

promulgated under sub. (5) whether an emergency

requiring the team’s urban search and rescue task force’s

response existed.  If the regional structural collapse team

division determines that such an emergency existed, it

shall make a good faith effort to identify the person who

is required to reimburse the division under sub. (3) and

shall provide that information to the division.  The divi-

sion shall contract with local agencies, as defined in s.

323.70 (1) (b), to establish no more than 4 regional struc-

tural collapse teams an urban search and rescue task

force.  A member of  a regional structural collapse team

an urban search and rescue task force shall meet the high-

est most current training, competency, and job perfor-

mance requirement standards for a structural collapse

team under search and rescue task force issued by the

National Fire Protection Association standards NFPA

1006 and 1670 and the most current version of the urban

search and rescue standard issued by the Emergency

Management Accreditation program.

SECTION 18.  323.72 (2) of the statutes is amended to

read:

323.72 (2)  The From the appropriation under s.

20.465 (3) (h) or (hm), the division shall reimburse a

regional structural collapse team local agency under sub.

(1) for costs incurred by the team local agency in

responding to an emergency involving a structural col-

lapse incident if the team determines that a structural col-

lapse emergency requiring  a  an urban search and rescue

task force response existed as provided under the rules

promulgated under sub. (5) if the division determines that

such a response was necessary.  Reimbursement under

this subsection is limited to amounts collected under sub.

(3).  Reimbursement under this subsection is available

only if the regional structure collapse team has identified

the person who is required to reimburse the division

under sub. (3) and provided that information to the divi-

sion shall be issued to the local agency within 60 days

after receiving a complete application for reimbursement

on a form prescribed by the division if the agency applies

for reimbursement within 45 days after the conclusion of

the deployment of the urban search and rescue task force.

SECTION 19.  323.72 (2m) of the statutes is created to

read:

323.72 (2m)  From the appropriation under s. 20.465

(3) (hm), the division shall reimburse a local agency

under sub. (1) for costs incurred by the local agency for

any increase in contributions for duty disability premi-

ums under s. 40.05 (2) (aw) for employees who receive

duty disability benefits under s. 40.65 because of an

injury incurred while performing duties as a member of

an urban search and rescue task force under sub. (1).

SECTION 20.  323.72 (3) (intro.) and (b) of the statutes

are consolidated, renumbered 323.72 (3) and amended to

read:

323.72 (3)  A person shall reimburse the division for

costs incurred by  a regional structural collapse team an

urban search and rescue task force in responding to an

emergency if the team division determines under the

rules promulgated under sub. (5) that an emergency

requiring the team’s urban search and rescue task force’s

response existed and that one of the following conditions

applies: (b)  The the person caused the structural collapse

emergency.

SECTION 20g.  323.72 (3) (a) of the statutes is

repealed.

SECTION 21.  323.72 (4) of the statutes is amended to

read:

323.72 (4)  A member of  a regional structural col-

lapse team an urban search and rescue task force who is

acting under a contract under sub. (1) is considered an

employee of the state for purposes of worker’s compen-

sation benefits.

SECTION 22.  323.72 (5) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 23.  323.72 (6) of the statutes is created to

read:

323.72 (6)  The department of military affairs may

submit to the joint committee on finance a request to sup-

plement the appropriation account under s. 20.465 (3)

(hm) for the purposes for which the appropriation is

made.  If the cochairpersons of the committee do not

notify the department within 14 working days after

receiving the request that the cochairpersons have sched-

uled a meeting for the purpose of reviewing the request,

the appropriation account under s. 20.465 (3) (hm) shall

be supplemented from the appropriation account under s.

20.865 (4) (a), as provided in the request.  If, within 14



 − 4 −2021 Wisconsin Act 104  2021 Senate Bill 374

working days after receiving the request, the cochairper-

sons notify the department that the cochairpersons have

scheduled a meeting for the purpose of reviewing the

request, the appropriation account may be supplemented

from the appropriation account under s. 20.865 (4) (a)

only as approved by the committee.  Notwithstanding s.

13.101 (3), the committee is not required to find that an

emergency exists prior to supplementing the appropria-

tion account under s. 20.465 (3) (hm).

SECTION 24.  323.72 (7) of the statutes is created to

read:

323.72 (7)  In this section, “urban search and rescue

task force” means an all hazards rescue team that is a core

component of a Search and Rescue Essential Support

Function 9 (ESF 9) mission, including a type I urban

search and rescue task force, type III urban search and

rescue task force, or any component thereof, as desig-

nated by the Federal Emergency Management Agency

National Incident Management System Search and Res-

cue resource typing system.

SECTION 25.  895.483 (4) of the statutes is amended

to read:

895.483 (4)   A regional structural collapse team An

urban search and rescue task force, a member of such a

team task force, and a local agency, as defined in s. 323.70

(1) (b), that contracts with the division of emergency

management in the department of military affairs for the

provision of  a regional structural collapse team emer-

gency services, are immune from civil liability for acts or

omissions related to carrying out responsibilities under a

contract under s. 323.72 (1).





























 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Owner:  CNR, LLC c/o Craig Weborg 

 

Applicant:  The Breaking Point c/o Courtney Hayden 

 

Address/Parcel #:  2009 & 2011 N. Richmond Street (Tax Id #31-5-2326-00) 

 

Petitioner’s Request:  The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit for an indoor recreational use 

with alcohol sales and consumption.  

 

BACKGROUND______________________________________________________________  _ 

The building was constructed in 1947 and the property contains a multi-tenant building with an off-street 

parking lot.   

 

STAFF ANALYSIS____________________________________________________________  _ 

Project Summary:  The applicant proposes to establish an indoor recreational use with alcohol sales and 

service on the subject site, which would occupy approximately 2,400 square feet of the existing multi-

tenant building.  The uses include rage rooms, splatter room, air soft target shooting and a small bar area. 

 

Operational Information:  A plan of operation is attached to the staff report. 

 

Existing Site Conditions:  The 15,571 square foot site is currently developed with a multi-tenant 

building, which is approximately 5,856 square feet in size.  The site provides off-street parking on the east 

and west sides of the building, including parking provided on the adjacent parcel (Tax Id #31-5-2327-00).  

Access is provided by curb cuts on North Richmond Street and West Glendale Avenue. 

 

Current Zoning and Procedural Findings:  The subject property has a zoning designation of C-2 

General Commercial District.  Per Section 23-113(e) of the Municipal Code, an indoor recreational use 

that also includes alcohol sales and consumption requires a Special Use Permit in the C-2 District.  The 

Plan Commission makes a recommendation to the Common Council who will make the final decision on 

the Special Use Permit.  A two-thirds vote of the Common Council is required for approval. 

 

Surrounding Zoning and Land Uses:  The surrounding area is under the jurisdiction of the City of 

Appleton (north, south, east, and west).  The uses are generally commercial and residential in nature. 

 

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Public Hearing Date:  January 12, 2022 

 

Common Council Meeting Date:  January 19, 2022 

 

Item:  Special Use Permit #5-21 for an indoor recreational use with 

alcohol sales and consumption  

 

Case Manager:  Jessica Titel, Principal Planner 

Community  

and Economic 

Development 



Special Use Permit #5-21 

January 12, 2022 

Page 2 
 

North:  C-2 General Commercial District.  The adjacent land uses to the north are currently a mix of 

commercial uses. 

 

South:  C-2 General Commercial District.  The adjacent land uses to the south are currently a mix of 

commercial uses. 

 

East:  R-1B Single-Family District.  The adjacent land uses to the east are currently single-family 

residential. 

 

West:  M-2 General Industrial District.  The adjacent land uses to the west are currently a mix of 

commercial uses. 

 

Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030:  Community and Economic Development staff has reviewed 

this proposal and determined it is compatible with the Commercial designation shown on the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map.  Listed below are related excerpts from the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030. 

 

Goal 1 – Community Growth 

Appleton will continue to provide opportunities for residential, commercial, and industrial growth, 

including appropriate redevelopment sites within the downtown and existing neighborhoods, and 

greenfield development sites at the City's edge. 

 

Goal 8 – Economic Development 

Appleton will pursue economic development that retains and attracts talented people, brings good jobs to 

the area, and supports the vitality of its industrial areas, downtown, and neighborhood business districts. 

 

OBJECTIVE 9.4 Economic Development: 

Ensure the continued vitality of downtown and the City’s neighborhood commercial districts. 

 

OBJECTIVE 10.5 Land Use: 

Support the continued redevelopment and revitalization of land uses adjacent to Appleton’s key 

transportation corridors and downtown. 

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  These items appeared on the December 7, 2021 Technical 

Review Group agenda.  The following comments were received from participating departments and have 

been incorporated into the Conditions of Approval: 

• Police Department:  Ensure the applicant is willing/able to comply with our noise ordinances with 

their proposed business plan, specifically “Sec. 12-87. Radio or other electric sound amplification 

device – prohibited. No person or business may use a radio or other similar electric sound 

amplification device so that sound emitting from said radio or amplification device is audible 

under normal conditions from a distance of seventy-five (75) or more feet.” 

 

• Fire Department:  Please note the occupant loads provided by the applicant have not been verified 

through review by a representative of a Fire Department.  We recommend the applicant supply the 

FD with a WI occupant worksheet when they want these numbers posted, as required in the 

Municipal Ordinance, whenever food & drink is served. Appleton Fire will print the sign for 

posting. 



Special Use Permit #5-21 

January 12, 2022 

Page 3 
 

Zoning Ordinance Requirements and Substantial Evidence:  When reviewing an application for a 

Special Use Permit, the City must determine if the applicant’s proposal satisfies Municipal Code 

requirements and conditions.  Pursuant to Section 23-66(c)(5) of the Municipal Code, the Plan 

Commission and Common Council must provide substantial evidence supporting their decision to 

approve, approve with conditions, or deny the Special Use Permit.  Substantial evidence means “facts and 

information, other than merely personal preferences or speculation, directly pertaining to the requirements 

and conditions an applicant must meet to obtain a Special Use Permit and that reasonable persons would 

accept in support of a conclusion.”  Any requirements and conditions listed for approval must be 

reasonable, and to the extent practicable, measurable. 

 

Finding of Fact:  This request was reviewed in accordance with the standards (proper zoning district, 

district regulations, special regulations, comprehensive plan and other plans, traffic, landscaping and 

screening, neighborhood compatibility, and impact on services) for granting a Special Use Permit under 

Section 23-66(e)(1-8) of the Municipal Code, which were found in the affirmative, as long as all 

stipulations are satisfied. 

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________  _ 

Staff recommends, based on the above analysis, that Special Use Permit #5-21 for an indoor recreation 

use with alcohol sales and consumption located at 2009 & 2011 North Richmond Street (Tax Id #31-5-

2326-00), as shown on the attached maps and per attached plan of operation, along with the attached 

resolution, BE APPROVED to run with the land, subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. All applicable codes, ordinances, and regulations, including but not limited to Fire, Building, and 

Health Codes and the Noise Ordinance, shall be complied with. 

Substantial Evidence:  Standardized condition to ensure the applicant understands the City’s 

Municipal Code and all applicable State and Federal laws must be followed. 

 

2. This Special Use Permit is needed for the on-site alcohol sales and consumption, not the indoor 

recreational use.  Any expansions of the special use, changes to the development plan(s), plan of 

operation or any conditions of approval may require a major or minor amendment request to this 

Special Use Permit pursuant to Section 23-66(g) of the Zoning Ordinance. Contact the 

Community and Economic Development Department to discuss any proposed changes. 

Substantial Evidence:  Standardized condition that establishes parameters for the current 

application and identifies the process for review of any future changes to the special use. 

 

3. The applicant shall receive approval of a Liquor License from the City Clerk prior to serving 

alcohol on the premises. 

Substantial Evidence:  This condition provides notice to the applicant that a Liquor License is 

also needed prior to serving alcohol. 

 

4. The use shall conform to the standards established in Chapter 9, Article III, Alcoholic Beverages, 

of the Appleton Municipal Code. 

Substantial Evidence:  This condition is one of the special regulations included in Section 23-

66(h)(6) of the Zoning Ordinance for this particular use. 

 



6-2
43

9-1

0-2
31

5-1

0-2315-2

5-3432-1

5-3432

5-2
37

5

5-2
37

6 5-2379

6-0799-10

6-0800-1

6-0800-2

6-0799-12

6-0800

6-0800-9

6-0800-6

6-2440

6-2440-1

6-0800-3

6-2439

6-2438

6-0800-10

5-2316

6-2449

6-2450

6-2448

6-2447

6-2453

6-2454

6-2455

6-2451

6-2452

6-2446

6-2445

6-2444

6-2443

6-2442

5-2
32

7

5-2
32

8

5-2
32

9

5-2
33

0

5-2323

5-2
32

6

5-2325

5-2885

5-2
31

3 5-2315

5-28865-2887
5-2

31
4

19
32

19
03

19
09

19
15

19
25

19
31

19
35

20
09

19
33

19
15

19
39

20
26

20
11

20
25

19
24

19
18

19
12

20
09

21
02

21
01

21
19

21
11

21
20

21
14

21
08

21
25

21
09

621639

620634

706

19
01

19
07

19
25

21
07

21
24

731 725

715

730 724

719

730 718

716
714

21
17

21
07

21
07

.5
20

15
20

17
20

25

N 
ER

B S
T

N 
LO

CU
ST

 ST

N 
RI

CH
MO

ND
 ST

W GLENDALE AV

W FRANCES ST

C-2

R-1B

M-2

R-1B

W GLENDALE AV

N 
RI

CH
MO

ND
 ST

N 
DI

VIS
IO

N 
ST

Special Use Permit
Alcohol Sales and Consumption

The Breaking Point
2009 & 2011 N. Richmond Street

Zoning Map
Subject

Area

City Plan Commission
1-12-2022

Subject Area

± 0 90 18045 Feet

R-2



6-2
43

9-1

0-2
31

5-1

0-2315-2

5-3432-1

5-3432

5-2
37

5

5-2
37

6 5-2379

5-9
54

0-8 6-0799-11

6-0799-10

6-0800-1

6-0800-2

6-0799-7

6-0799-12

6-0800

6-0800-9

6-0800-6

6-2440

6-2440-1

6-0800-3

6-2439

6-2438

6-0800-10

5-2316

6-2449

6-2450

6-2448

6-2447

6-2453

6-2454

6-2455

6-2451

6-2452

6-2446

6-2445

6-2444

6-2443

6-2442

5-2
32

7

5-2
32

8

5-2
32

9

5-2
33

0

5-2323
5-2

32
6

5-2325

5-2885

5-2
31

3 5-2315

5-28865-2887
5-2

31
4

19
32

18
31

19
03

19
09

19
15

19
25

19
31

19
35

20
09

19
33

19
15

19
39

20
26

20
11

20
25

19
24

19
18

19
12

19
10

20
09

21
02

21
01

21
19

21
11

21
20

21
14

21
08

21
25

21
09

620

621

630

639

620634

706

19
01

19
07

19
25

21
07

21
24

731 725

715

730 724

719

730 718

716
714

21
17

21
07

21
07

.5
20

15
20

17
20

25

N 
ER

B S
T

N 
LO

CU
ST

 ST

N 
RI

CH
MO

ND
 S

T

W GLENDALE AV

W MARQUETTE ST

W FRANCES ST

Special Use Permit
Alcohol Sales and Consumption

The Breaking Point
2009 & 2011 N. Richmond Street

Aerial Map

City Plan Commission
1-12-2022

Subject Area

± 0 90 18045 Feet



1 | P a g e  

 

RESOLUTION 

 

CITY OF APPLETON 

RESOLUTION APPROVING SPECIAL USE PERMIT #5-21    

 

 

WHEREAS, Courtney Hayden, owner of The Breaking Point has applied for a Special Use 

Permit to allow alcohol sales and consumption on the premises located at 2009 & 2011 N. 

Richmond Street, and also identified as Parcel Number 31-5-2326-00, and 

 

WHEREAS, the location for the proposed indoor recreational use with alcohol sales and service 

is located in the C-2 General Commercial District, and the proposed use may be permitted by 

Special Use Permit within this zoning district pursuant to Chapter 23 of the Municipal Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission held a public hearing on January 12, 2022 

on Special Use Permit #5-21 at which all those wishing to be heard were allowed to speak or 

present written comments and other materials presented at the public hearing; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission has reviewed and considered the 

Community and Economic Development Department’s staff report and recommendation and 

other spoken and written evidence and testimony presented at the public hearing; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission reviewed the standards for granting a 

Special Use Permit under Sections 23-66(e)(1-8) of the Municipal Code; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission reviewed the standards for imposing 

conditions on the Special Use Permit under Section 23-66(c)(5) of the Municipal Code, and 

forwarded Special Use Permit #5-21 to the City of Appleton Common Council with a favorable 

conditional    or       not favorable      (CIRCLE ONE) recommendation; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Common Council has reviewed the report and 

recommendation of the City of Appleton Plan Commission at their meeting on January 19, 2022. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by the 

Common Council, based on Community and Economic Development Department’s staff report 

and recommendation, as well as other spoken and written evidence and testimony presented at 

the public hearing and Common Council meeting, and having considered the recommendation of 

the City Plan Commission, that the Common Council: 

 

1. Determines all standards listed in Sections 23-66(e)(1-8) are found in the affirmative       

YES  or   NO   (CIRCLE ONE)  

 

2. If NO, the City of Appleton Common Council hereby denies Special Use Permit #5-21 for 

alcohol sales and consumption on the premises located at 2009 & 2011 N. Richmond Street, 

and also identified as Parcel Number 31-5-2326-00, based upon the following standards and 

determinations:  (List reason(s) why the Special Use Permit was denied) 

 



2 | P a g e  

 

3. If YES, the City of Appleton Common Council hereby approves Special Use Permit #5-21 

for alcohol sales and consumption on the premises located at 2009 & 2011 N. Richmond 

Street, and also identified as Parcel Number 31-5-2326-00, subject to the following 

conditions: 

 

CONDITIONS OF SPECIAL USE PERMIT #5-21: 

 

A. All applicable codes, ordinances, and regulations, including but not limited to Fire, 

Building, and Health Codes and the Noise Ordinance, shall be complied with. 

 

B. This Special Use Permit is needed for the on-site alcohol sales and consumption, not the 

indoor recreational use.  Any expansions of the special use, changes to the development 

plan(s), plan of operation or any conditions of approval may require a major or minor 

amendment request to this Special Use Permit pursuant to Section 23-66(g) of the Zoning 

Ordinance. Contact the Community and Economic Development Department to discuss 

any proposed changes. 

 

C. The applicant shall receive approval of a Liquor License from the City Clerk prior to 

serving alcohol on the premises. 

 

D. The use shall conform to the standards established in Chapter 9, Article III, Alcoholic 

Beverages, of the Appleton Municipal Code. 

 

 

4. The City Clerk’s Office is hereby directed to give a copy of this resolution to the 

owner/applicant, Community and Economic Development Department, Inspections Division, 

and any other interested party.   

 

Adopted this 19th day of January 2022. 

 

 

 

     ____________________________________ 

      Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor   

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk 

 

 







TitelJL
Text Box
30

TitelJL
Text Box
30

TitelJL
Text Box
4

TitelJL
Text Box
4

TitelJL
Text Box
4

TitelJL
Line

TitelJL
Line

































114 120
12

03
12

09

135131 133127 213

114

121

116 118 120 132128 206-212

E SUMMER ST

E WISCONSIN AV

N 
MO

RR
ISO

N 
ST

135 East Wisconsin Avenue
Special Use Permit

Restaurant with on-site sale/consumption of alcohol
Parking Map

City Plan Commission
4-14-2020± 0 80 16040 Feet

Subject Area












	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_S L Minutes 1-26-22
	0002_1_1-R-22 Intoxicated Bartenders
	0002_2_Intoxicated Bartender incidents 2021
	0003_1_Auto-Aid_Neenah_Menasha_Memo
	0003_2_22-0078 - Addendum to Automatic Aid Agrm
	0003_3_2011 Auto Aid Agreement MOU
	0003_4_2010 Shared Response
	0004_1_Urban_Search_and_Rescue_Memo
	0004_2_Urban Search and Rescue 2022-2024 Agreement
	0004_3_2021_Act_104
	0005_1_Jimmys on the Ave
	0006_1_Breaking Point
	0006_2_Resolution_The Breaking Point_SUP5-21_SIGNED
	0006_3_StaffReport_Breaking Point_SUP_For01-12-22
	0007_1_Taco House
	0007_2_Resolution_135 E Wisconsin Ave_SUP3-20_SIGNED_attached to liquior license
	0008_1_Jamison Pierce SL
	0009_1_Michael J Haasch SL
	0010_1_Fox River House SL



